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VR CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS & s CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL ST ATEME~TS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 4.UDITING STANDARDS 

To the School Board 
Watertown School District No. 14-4 
Watertown, South Dakota 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generalf y accepted Ill the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to tmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, .the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Watertown School District No. 14-4 
("District"), as of June 30, 2020, and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the fmancial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated F ebtuary 17, 
2021, which was qualified for the governmental activities and the aggregate remaining fund information, because we 
were not engaged to, and we did not, audit the fmancial statements of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation 
and the Arrow Education Foundation. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the fmancial 
statements of Northeast Technical High School ("NTHS''), as described iii our report on the Watertown School 
District No. 14-4's fmancial statements. This report dQeS not include the results of the other auditors' testing on 
internal control over fmancial reporting or compliance and other matters that ate reported on separately by those 
auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over 
fmancial reporting ("internal control") to de:termi).le the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our bpinions on the fmancial statements, but not for the putpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control., Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on-the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,· or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinati9n of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District'S fmancial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and ccsrrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described 10 the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify 
certain deficiencies in internal control, described irt the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. We consider the deficiencies described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2020-00 I to be significant 
deficiencies. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements; noncompliance with which could have a direct and m~terial effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of 
non<,ompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and is 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Finclings and Questioned Costs as Item 2020-002. 

School District's Response to Findings 
The District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Sclredule of Current 
Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 'District's internal control or on 
compliance. 'Jl?.is report is an integral •part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, •this communication is not 
suitable for, any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report is a matter of public 
record, and its distribution is not limited. 

Watertown; South Dakota 
February 17, 2021 
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vR· CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
- ACCOUNTANTS & s CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR.'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the School Board 
Watertown School District No. ·14-4 
Watertown, South Dakota 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the Watertown School District No. 14-4's ("District") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
Schedu_le of Current Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs based on 
our audit of the types of compl~ance requirements referred to above. 

We conducted our audit of cotnpliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable· to financial audits cont\ined in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 1 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
("Uniform Guidance")., Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audif to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the Watertown School District No. 14-4 complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June'30, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to detennine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in· the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
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not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do ~ot express an opinion on the effectiveness of.the District's ipternal control oyer compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow. 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material · 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those· charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the lim'ited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify aJl deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. · We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpo~e of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Unifonn Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, 
this report and our report on compliance for each major federal program are matters of public record and their 
distribution is not limited. 

Watertown, South Dakota 
· February 17, 2021 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL D~STRICT NO. 14-4 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED cosrs 
June 30, 2020 

PRIOR FEDERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 
There ~e no written prior federal compliance audit findings to report. 

PRIOR OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS 
1991-003 
A significant deficiency was reported for a lack of segregation of duties for the revenue, expenditure and payroll 
functions and has existed since the School District was established. This finding has not been corrected and has 
been restated in the current other audit findings as 2020-001. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
June 30, 2020 

·sUMMARY OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements · 
a. An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the business-type activities and each major 

fund, with the exception of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation, which qualified as a major fund1 but 
was unaudited and therefore we disclaimed an opinion on that opinion unit. A qualified opinion was issued on 
the governmental activities and the .aggregate remaining fund information, because we were not engaged to, and 
we did not audit the financial statements of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation and the Arrow 
Education Foundation. 

b. . A significant deficiency was disclosed by our audit of the financial statements for a lack ofsegregation of duties 
as discussed in finding number 2020-001. The :,ignificant deficiency applied only to the fmancial statements. 

c. Our audit did disclose any instance ofnoncompliance as discussed in fmding number 2020-002. 

Federal Awards . 
d. An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to major programs. 

e. Our audit · did not disclo_se any audit fmdings that are reqnired to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.516(a). 

f. The federal awards tested as major programs were: 
l. Student Financial Assistance Programs Cluster 

a. 84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG) 
b. 84.033 Federal Work Study Program (FWS) 
c. 84.038 Federal Perkins Loan (FPL) - Fede,ral Capital Contributions 
d. 84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program (PELL) 
e. 84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans (DIRECT LOAN) 

2. Special Education Cluster 
a. 84.027 Special Education - Grants to States 
b. 84.173 Special Education - Preschool Grants 

. 3. Coron3rvirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security .Act (CARES) 
a. 84.425D Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
b. 84.425E Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Students 
c. 84.425F Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund- Institutions 

g. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal award programs was $750,000. 

h. Watertown School District No. 14-4 did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

Current Federal Audit Findings: 
There are no written current federal compliance audit findings to report._ 

Current Other Audit Findings: 
Internal Control-Related Finding - Significant Deficiencies: 

Finding # 2020-00 I 
Criteria: Misstatements in amounts that would be significant in relation to the financial statements may occur and 
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assign~d functions. 

Condition: A significant deficiency was reported for a lack of segregation of duties for the revenue, expenditure and 
payroll functions. · 

Effect: The possible asserted effect of this condition is the misappropriation of cash or other assets. 

Cause: The limited staff s.ize of the District'~ ~usiness office does not allow for proper oversi~t. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO." 14-4 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 2020 

Current Other Audit Findings (Continued): 
Identification as a Repeat Finding: This is a repeat audit fmding. 

Recommendation: We recommend management continue to segregate sensitive functions as much as possible to 
provide compensating internal controls whenever, and wherever, possible and practical. 

Response: The District's management agrees with the above finding and has responded to it in the corrective action 
plan. . 

Current Other Audit Findings: 

Other Compliance-Related Findings 

Finding # 2020-002 
Criteria: According to South Dakota Codified Law 13-11-2, districts are not allowed to exceed the budgeted 
appropriations of each fund for the fiscal ~ear. 

CoQdition: The District over~exP,ended the budget for the Self-Insurance Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Effect: The District is not in compliance with state statute. 

Cause: The District did not adequately budget for expenditures for the Self-Insurance Fund. . ' ~ 

Recommendation: We recommend the District evaluate compliance with the budget prior to year end and make any 
amendments as considered necessary. 

Response: The governing board plans to monitor these expenditures to prevent future overdrafts and make 
amendments as considered necessary. · 

-7-



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT No. 14-4 
Business OHice 
P.O. Box 730 Watertown, SD 57201-0730 
Ph. (605) 882-6314 Fax (605) 882-6327 

HEIDI CLAUSEN 
Busir,ess Manager 
Heidi.Clausen@k12.sd.us 

. MICHELE KRUSE 
Executive Assistant 
Michele.1<ruse@k12.sd.us 

Finding Number 2020-001: Significant deficiency in internal controls due to a lack of segregation of duties. 

Planned Corrective Action: The Watertown School District Business Manager, Heidi Clausen; is the contact person 
responsible for the corrective action plan for this finding. · This finding is a result of the size of the District, which 
precludes staffing at a level sufficient to provide an ideal environment for internal controls. The District has_ 
determined it is not cost beneficial to employ additional personnel just to be able to adequately segregate duties. 
The District is aware of this problem and will continue to develop policies and pto.cedures and provide 
compensating controls to reduce the risk of misappropriatioµ of assets. This will be an ongoing process, requiring 
continual analysis of processes and procedures in order to minimize the risk. However, it is not practical to take 
significant enough steps to remove the deficiency completely. 

Finding Number 2020-002: Over expenditure of budget in Self Insurance Fund. 

Planned Corrective Action: . The Watertown School District Business Manager, Heidi Clausen, along with the
governing board, is the contact person responsible for the corrective _action. plan for this finding. The District 
intends to monitor these expenditures to prevent future material overdrafts and make amendments as considered 
necessary. 

~,-, ~ 
Business Ma1;1ager 
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VR CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
· ACCOUNTANTS & s CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the School Board 
Watertown School District No. 14-4 . 
Watertown, South Dakota 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, with the exception of the LA TI Foundation Fund described below, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information, with the exception of the Arrow Education Found~tion described below, of the Watertown School 
District No. 14-4 ("District"), as of June 30, 2020, and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively. compryse the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The District's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these. financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles genei:ally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whethet due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
financial statements of Northeast Technical High School ("NTHS"), which represent less than one percent of the 
assets, net position and revenues of the District's governmental activities. Those statements were audited by other 
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for 
NTHS, is based solely on the rep~rt of other auditors. Except as discussed in the following paragraphs, we 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Audittng Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements ate free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures !n the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordinglyi we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial · 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 
The. financial statements of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation have not been audited, and we were not 
engaged to audit the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation's financial statements as part of our audit of the 
District's basic finan~ial statements. · 

Disclaimer of Opinion 
Because of the significance of the tnatters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have not · 
been able to obtain sufficient audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the Lake Area Technical 
Institute Foundation opinion unit. Accordingly, we do not expreS's an opinion on the Lake Area Technical Institute 
Foundation's opinion unit referred to in the previous paragraph. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities 
The fmancial statements of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation and the Arrow Education Foundation have 
not been audited, and we were not engaged to audit the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation's and the Arrow 
Education Foundation's financial statements as part of our audit of the District's basic financial statements. The 
financial activities of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation .and the Arrow Education Foundation represent 
less than ten percent of the assets, net position and rev,enues of the District's governmental activities. These financial 
activities are included in the District's financial statements as blended special revenue funds. The District has 
omitted the required disclosures related to the investments of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation and the 
Arrow Educati'on Foundation. 

Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report o( other auditors, except for the effects, if any, of the matters . 
discussed in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion .on Governmental Activities" paragr.aph, the financial state.ments 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities for the District ·as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year. 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in ·the United States of America. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 
The financial statements of the Arrow Education Foundation have not been audited, and we were not engaged to 
audit the Arrow Education Foundation's financial statements as part of our audit of the District's basic financial 
statements. The financial activities of the Arrow Education Foundation represent less than sixteen percent of the 
assets, fund balances and revenues of the aggregate- remaining fund information. These financial activities are 
included in the District's financial statements as blended special revenue funds. 

Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 
In our opinion, based on our audit· and the report of other auditors, except for the effects, if any, o{ the matters 
discussed in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information" paragraph, the fmancial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the aggregate 
remaining fund information for the District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position 
th~reof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles geni,rally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Unmodified Opinion 
In our opinion, the fmancial.statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all mat~ial respects, the 
respective fmanciat position of the business-type activities and each major fund, with the exception of the Lake Area 
Technical Institute Foqndation Fund described above in the disclairner of opinion paragraph, of the District as of 
June 30, 2020, and the respective chap.ges in financial position and~ where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principl~s generally accepted in the United States of America. . . 

· Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of AmericR'require that·the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis ("MD&A"), the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, the Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability 
and Related Ratios, the Schedule of District Contributions and the Schedule of District's Proportionate Share of Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) on pages 12 through 21 and 54 through 63 be presented to supplement the basic fmancjal 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governrriental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic 
fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
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the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing ,the 
information and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements· and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express .an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opin~on or provide any assurance. 

Supplemlfntary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that cbllectively comprise 
the District's basic financial statements. The Schedule -of Expenditures of Federal Awards, which as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal.Regulations ("CFR") Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"), and the combining fund financial statements 
listed in the table of contents are presented for pµrposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other .records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the fmancial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepteq in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic fmancial statements as a 
whole. 

The Schedule of School District Officials on page 64 is presented for additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. The schedule has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion. or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards: we have also issued our report dated February 17, 2021, on our 
consideratiQn of the District's internal control over fml)llcial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contract and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over fmancial reporting and compli~ce and the results of tha,t 
testing, and not to provide an opiniOJl on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit. performed in ~ccordance· with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. · 

P.C. 

Watertown, South Dakota 
February 17, 2021 
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Watertown School District No. 14-4 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

, Fiscal Year 2019-20 

The Administration of the Watertown School Oistrict No. 14-4 is providing the following infonnation as required by the GASB 34 
regulations. Comparisons to the previous year's financial infonnation are provided thr-0ughout'this discussion and analysis. 

This section of the annual financial report of the Watertown School District No. 14-4 presents. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of the District's financial perfonnance during the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2020. This MD&A is to' be read in 
conjunction with the District's financial statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGllLIGHTS 

• The District continues to maintain art adequate financial position in all major funds with indication as in prior years that 
the Special Education Fund is identified at concern status with a fund balance operation at 3.2% of expenditures. The 
ending fund balance in the General Fund is 28% of expenditures; which is 6% higher than the prior year. The fund balance 
percentage is based on the most current year's total expenditures in the fund being analyzed. The increase in General Fund 
is directly related to the COVID pan!lemic and the school closure that took place on March 16, 2020 and extended through 
the end of the school year. Directly impacted areas included decreases in substitute costs, travel/field trips, and professional 
development with expenditures coming in at 78% of budgeted. Another significant impact in expeqditures beirig less than 
originally anticipated is the budgeted transfer of $374,000.00 as noted to cover cash needs in the Special Education Fund 
was not needed. JJnder cash limiting legislation, schools are not allowed to have thelr lowest month ending cash balance 
in an amount in excess of25% of the prior year's expenditures. The District met this threshold with a calculated 14.91 % 
with the lowest month of cash on hand of$3.9 million. The ending cash position of the General Fund on June 30, 2020 
was $8,912,858. When comparing cash balance to fund balance, it is important to note that the ending fund balance of a 
particul~ fund includes financial impacts related to accounts receivap!e, contracts payable and accounts payable, and 
therefore indicates a full financial measure of the fund. 

• The Capital Outlay Fund's revenue exceeded the expenditures dµring 2019-20 by $652,014. The revenue exceeded the 
budgeted amount, whereas expenditures came in 12% below anticipated. This was in large part due to transferring 
$426,000 less than anticipated to the General Fund in support of salary costs. Activity in the Capital Outlay Fund will 
increase in tiscal year 2021 with the High School renovation project and support from Capital Outlay Certificates in th~ 
amount of$15,000,000. The ending fund balance of this fund as of June 30, 2020 is $13,919,512, with notation that 
$10,055,502 is held in trust for the Cro$sover Advanced Refunding. The use of the fund balance is restricted to the 
allowable expenses and transfers of the Capi~l Outlay Fund. 

• The Special Education Fund ended the fiscal year with a fund balance of$216,918, which is a decrease of$30,921 when 
compared to the prior year. This decrease is less than anticipated in the modified budget, but it still notes a.concern. The 
less than expected decrease was caused by the expenditures being 89% of the expected amount. The ending fund balance 
on June 30, 2020, is equal to 3.2% oftlie prior year's expenditures, which is a slight decrease and well below tb:e State's 
allowable maximum of 25%._ This fund's finances are a bit of a challenge when you consider the increase in the number 
of students needing special services, the continued decline in the fund balance and the need to meet the Federal 
requirements of"Maintenance of Local Effort". , 

• The general operations of Lake Area Technical Institute reflect expenditures over revenoe in the amount of $827,087, 
which was well below the budgeted loss of$3,53 l,275. This decrease was anticipated due to the Prairie Lakes Healthcafe 
Center of Learning building project of which, $ I ,324, 927 was reserved for future construction costs during the 2019 fiscal 
year. The year ending fund balance is $7,633,903 or 28% and is at a level to accommodate revenue and expenditure 
fluctuations throughout the year. With activity in this fund hard to predict due to fluctuating enrollment, timing of 
construction/equipment needs and varying State support it is appropriate to have a steady fund balance to accommodate 
expenditures and revenue variations. There are currently not any restrictions on the amount of cash .or fund balance, in this 
Fund. The June 30; 2020 cash balance of $9,824,600 is deceiving due to the liabilities noted for accounts and contracts 
payable. · 

• Both the Financial Aid Fund and the LATI Foundation Fund are considered major·operating funds. The Financial Aid 
Fund due to the financial activity throughout the year and the LA TI Foundation Fund due to its year-end financial position 
of$5,835,513. 
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• Business.type activities had a combined net position decrease of$110,124 during the 2019-20year. This net decrease is a 
direct reflection of the general profit/(loss} of the various business-type funds and the incorporation of the District's 
proportionate share of the components of the net pension asset of the South Dakota Retirement System. It needs to be 
noted that the transactions of the Concessions operations included a transfer out of$19,000 to the Capital Outlay Fund. It 
should also be noted that the components of the net pe~sion liability of the South Dakota Retirement System provided a 
decrease of $110,124 to these net positions. 

• The District has outstanding Capital Outlay Certificate debt in the amount of$23,670,000 with $10,055,502 held in Trust 
in relation to the "Crossover Partial Advance Refunding" of the Series 2014 ~ Middle School Project: Amortized payments 
in the amount of $925,000 were made and therefore leaving the combined outstanding balance of Series 2014 - Middle 
School and the Series 2016 · -McKinley Elementary at $14,805,000. The balance, $8,865,000, is related to the above noted 
Refunding. The District also entered into a lease/purchase agreement in relation to the High School Laptop program and 
at year-end, $484,640 remained outstanding as lease/purchase payments. Additionally, the District recognizes its Early 
Retirement Plan obl,igation as long-term debt and at year-end that payable amount is $747,819 of which the Pi$trict's 
General Fund is responsible for $592,312 and the Post-Secondary Fund's share is $155,507. Detailed amortization 
information is located on page 43 and 44 of this audit report. 

• These financial statements reflect the inclusion of the LA TI Foundation and the Arrow .Education Foundation. The 
reporting is due to the close nature in which the foundations operate to the District. The June 30, 2020, fund balance of· 
the LATI Foundation is $5,835,513' and the Arrow Education Foundation is $2,513,858. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

. This annual report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), basic financial statements and 
supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the 
District: ' 

• The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide botlr long-term and short-term information 
about the District's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements.are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the District's 
operations in more detail than the district-wide statements. 

• Governmental fund statements tell how general District services were financed in short-term as well as 
wh,at remains for future sp~nding. 

• Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial infonnation about the activities that the 
District operates like businesses {Nutrition Services, Arena Concessions, Driver's Education, Pre-school 
Services, LATI Bookstore, LA TI Food Service and Educiu-e Center). The District's Self-Funded Insurance 
Trust and Unemployment Trust are operated as Internal Service Funds. · 

• Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial activity related to dollars in which· the 
District acts solely as the trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the i:esources belong. Student 
organization clubs and scholarship accounts are examples of these types of .ac9ounts. Fiduciary thnds are 
custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

The financial statements also include notes that provide further explanation of some of the information in the financial statements 
and provide additional disclosures so statement users have a complete picture of the District's financial activities and position. The 
statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in 
the financial statements by including a comparison of the District's budget data for the year. Figure A-1 shows how the required 
parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. 
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Figure A-1 

Required Components of Watertown School District's Financial Report 

Management's 
Discussion and 

Analysis 

Basic Required 
Financial -- Supplementary 

' 
Statements Information 

l I 
District-wide Fund !.\.otes to the 

Financial Financial Financial 
Statements Statements Statements 

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the· District's financial statements, including the portion of the Districfs activities 
they CO'\ler and the types of infofll\ation they contain. 

Scope 

Required 
financial 
statements 

Accounting 
basis and 
mi:asurement focus 

Type of 
·asset/liability 
information 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

Figure A-2 
Major Features of the District-wide and Fund Financial ~tatements 

District-:wide 
Statements 

Entire district ( except 
fiduciary funds) 

-Statement of Net Position 
'-Statement of Activities 

Accrual accountmg and 
economic resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, 
both :financial and capital, 
and short-term and long
term 

All revenues and expenses 
during year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid 

Governmental Funds 

The activities of the District 
that are not proprietary or 
fiduciary, such as General, 
Special ~ducation and 
Capital Outlay 

-Balance Sheet 
..Statement of Revenues; 
Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balances 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current fmancial 
resources focus 

Generally assets expected to 
be used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
ass-ets or long-term debt 
included 

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon 
after the end of the year, 
expenditures when goods or 
services have been 
received and the related 
liability is due and payable 
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Fund Financial Statements 

Activities the District 
operates SIIDilar to private 
busmesses, such as food 
service and student 
services 

-Balance Sheet 
-Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses and Changes 
in Fund Net Positions 

-Statement of Cash Flows 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long
term 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received 
or paid 

Fiduciary Funds 

Instances in which 
the District 
admimsters 
resources oil behalf 
of someone else, 
such as student
acthdties 

-Statement of fiduciary 
Net Position 
-Statement of changes 
in Fiduciary Net 
Positions 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources 
focus 

All assets and liabilities, 
both short-term and 
long-term; the 
District's funds do not 
currently contain 
capital assets although 
they can 

All additions and 
· deductions during the 
year, regardless of 
when cash is received 
or paid 



District-wide statements report infomtation about the District as a whole, using accounting methods similar to those used by the 
private sector. The statement of net position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year•~ revenues and 
expenses are accounted for in the statement ofactivities, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The two district-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have changed. Net positions are the difference 
between the District's assets and liabjlities and are one way to measure the District's financial position. · 

• Over time, increases and decreases in the District's net positions are an indicator of whether its financial position. is 
improving or deteriorating. · 

• Additional non-financial factors, such as changes in the District's property tax base, condition of facilities and equipment, 
District enrollment trends and changes in the school aid funding formula from the State of South Dakota need to be 
considered as well. 

The District-wide financial statements divide the District's activities into two categories:. 

• Governmental Activities include the District's instructional and support service costs in the (ollowing funds: General 
Fund, Capital Outlay, Special Education, Post Secondary, Financial Aid Fund and non-major governmental funds. 
Debt, service payments and capital equipment putchases are alsp accounted for in Governmental Activities. The 
financial support of Governmental Activities is derived mainly through property truces, State aid, State and Federal 
grants, and the tuition and fees received· by Lake Area Technical Institute .. 

• Business-type Activities are. activities in which the District charges fees to assist with the cost of the services being 
provided. The Nµtrition Services, Arena Concessions, Driver's Education, f>re-School Services, LA TI Bookstore, 
LA Tl Food Service and LATI Educare Service are Business-type Activities of the District. 

Fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's individual funds and not the. District as a whole. 
Funds 'are aqcounting devices that the District uses to track specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. 

• Law requires the use of certain funds and other funds are also uS'ed by the District to accommodate accounting and 
tracking of financial activities for varying purposes. The following are some of the funds used by the DistFict and 
their general purpose. 

• General Fund - general instructional operations of the District 
• Capital Outlay Fund - capital type acquisitions (buildings, equipment & debt retirement) 
• Special Education Fund - costs related to providing instruction and support services to students with special 

needs 
• Post Secondary Fund - accommodates the operations of Lake Area Technical Institute (LATI) 
• Pension Fund - accounts for the reserve and costs associated with the pistrict's early retirement policy 
• Perkins Fund - accommodates the financial assistance provided by the Federal Government in the form of 

student loans for the students at LA TI 
• Financial Aid Fund - accounts for student loans and college work study as provided by the Federal 

Government for LA Tl's students· · 

The District has three types of funds: 

• Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included ing!)vernmentai funds, which generally focus on 
( i) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year
end that are available for spending. The governmental fund statements 'provide a detailed short-term view that helps 

· determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the.near future to finance the District's 
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-tenn focus of th,e District-wide ::;tatements, 
we provide additional information with the governmental fund statements that explain the relationship (or differences) 
between them. 

The Watertown School District has designated the General Fund, ·capital Outlay Fund, Special Education Fund, f>ost 
Secondary Fund and Financial Aid Fund as its major funds. Therefore, information is presented separately for these funds 
in the balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance. Data for other governmental 
funds is provided in combined form. 

• Proprietary Funds - Services for which the District charges users a fee are generally reported ·io proprietary funds. 
Proprietary funds are like government.wide statements in that they both provide short and long-term financial information . 
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• Enterpdse Funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the District's business-type activities reported on the 
government-wide financial statements and they provide more detail and additional information, such as cash 
flows. 

• Internal Service Funds (the other kind of proprietary fund).are used to report activities that provide supplies and 
services for the District's other programs and activities. The District operates the Self-funded Insurance Trust 
and the Unemployment Trust as Internal Service Funds. 

• Fiduciary Funds - The District is the truste~. or· fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the student activity 
monies and scholarship proceeds. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used 
for their intended purposes. The District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of position - fiduciary 
funds. The District excludes these activities from the -District-wide financial statements because the District cannot use 
these assets to finance its operations. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

Statement ofNet Position - The District's June 30, 2020 combined: net positions reflects a decrease when compared to the previous 
year of -1.37%. The net positions do include the District's proportionate share of the components of the net pension liability of the 
South Dakota Retirement System as required by GASB 68 which began with the 201~ financial reports. 

Statement ofNet Pos1t1on 
June 30, 2020 

Governmentat Bus mess-type Total Total 
Act1V1t1es ActJv1t1es Percent 

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 Change 
Current and Other Assets $62,332,567 $63,185,451 $2,328,296 $2,498,939 $125,518,018 $65,684,390 91-09% 

Capital Assets (Net Depreciation) $66,595,004 $61,915,905 $286,271 $309,868 $66,881,275 $62,225,773 748% 

Total Assets $128,927,571 $125J01,356 $2,614,567 $2,808,807 $192,399,293 $127,910,163 5042% 

Pension Related Deferred Outflows $8,267,525 $12,323,063 $227,670 $400,249 $8,495,195 $12,723,312 -33.23% 

Assets and Deferred Outflows $137,195,096 $137,424,419 $2,842,237 $3,209,056 $140,037,333 $140,633,475 -042% 

Long-term Debt Outstandmg $27,965,314 $29,235,103 . $0 $0 $27,965,314 $29,235,103 -4.34% 

Other L1ab1ht1es $19,673,583 $18,013,872 $197,203 $460,659 $19,870,786 $18,474,531 756% 

Pension Related Deferred Inflows $3,255,618 $2,755,237 $92,604 $85,843 $3,.341,461 $2,841,080 1761% 

Total L1ab1htles $50,894,515 $50,004,212 $289,807 $546,502 $51,184,322 $50,550,714 l.25¾ 

Net Pos1t1on-
Net Invested m Capital Assets $40,559,384 $34,351,515 $286,271 $309,868 $40,845,655 $34,661,383 17 84% 

Restncted $35,594,152 $43,913,461 $139,510 $315,841 $35, 734,26.2 $44,229,302 -19.21% 

Unrestncfed $10,146,445 $9,155,231 $2,126,649 $2,036,845 $12,273,094. $11,192,076 966% 

Total Net Pos1t1on $86,300,581 $87,420,207 $2,552,430 $2,662,554 $88,853,011 $90,082,761 -13'7% 

Liabiht1es, Deferred Inflows and Net $137,195,096 $137,424,419 $2,842,237 $3,209,055 $140,037,333 $140,633,475 -042% Position 

Statement ofChanges in Net Position -The District's total revenue of$82,303,l 78 ts 1.82% less than the prior year. The expense 
total was 5.46%higherthan the prior year at the amount of$83,586,182. ln addition to the reported expense, the District reported a 
gain on the disposal of assets in the amount of $53,254. The revenue derived from charges for services is higher than the typical 
South Dakota school due to tuition and fees colltcted· at Lake Area Technical Institute. The change in Net Positions related .to 
governmental activities reflects a decrease of$1,1 l 9;626 and the business-type activities had a decrease of $110,124. 
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Changes in Watertown School District's Net Position_ 

Governmental Business-type Total Total 
Activities Activities Percent 

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 Change 
REVENUE 
Program Revenue 
Charges for Services $14,032,311 $13,524,762 $3,863,705 $4,460,285 s11:896,016 $17,985,047 -050% 
State and Federal Operatmg Grants $18,004,114 $18,792,138 $960,911 $862,078 $18,965,025 $19,654,216 -3 51% 

General Revenue 
Property Truces and Related Revenue $20,335,959 $20,740,052 $0 $0. $20,335,959 $20,740,QS2 -195% 
Intermediate Sources $426,742 $450,138 $0 $0 $426,742 $450,138 -5 20% 
State Aid $23,641,204 $23,691,288 $0 $0 $23,641,204 $23,691,2~8 -0.21% 
Other/Miscellane.oos S),001,082 .Sl,283,745 $37,150 $24,041 $1,038,232 $1,307,786 -20 61% 

Total Revenue $77,441,412 $78,482,123 $4,861,766 $5,346,4()4 $82,303,178 $83,828,527 -182% 

EXPENSES 
Instruction $39,080,873 $36,802,876 $0 $0 $39,080,873 $36,8Q2,876 619% 
Support services $36,881,629 $34,5g92S $0 $0 $36,881,62_9 $34,567,925 669% 
Non-programmed Charges $747,819 $531,704 $0 $0 $747,819 $531,704 40.65% 
Debt Service Payments · $815,080 $906,129 $0 $0 $815,080 $906,129 -1005% 
Co-cumcular Costs $1,107,891 $1,135,806 $0 $0 $1,107,891 $1,135,806 -2.46% 
Nutntton/Food/Concessions Semces $0 $0 $2,178,966 $2,249,466 $2,178,966 $2,249,466 -3 13% 
Student/Support Services $0 $0 $2,773,924 $3,063,595 $2,773,924 $3,063,595 -9.46% 

_ Total Expense $78,633,292 $73,944,440 $4,952,890 $5,313,061 $83,586,182 $79,257,501 5 46% 

Excess (Short Fall) of revenue before special items ($1,191,880) $4,537,683 ($91,124) $33,343 ($1,283,004) $4,571,026 -128 07% 

S pectal Items 
Gam/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets $53,254 ($103,035) $0 ($2,477) $53,254 ($105,512) -15047% 

Transfer In/(Out) $19,000 $24,900 ($12,0,00) ($24,900) $0 $0 000% 

CURRENT YEAR - INCREASE (DECREASE) IN {$1, 119,626)" $4,459,548 ($110,124) $5,966 ($1,229,750) $4,465,514 -127 54% NET POSITION 

The following information illusttates the revenue and expense breakdown of the governmental funds. The graphs demonstrate that 
the majority of the revenue consists of four main sources: State Aid - 31 %, Property Tax and telated revenue - 26%, State and 
Federal Grants - 23% and Charges for Services -18%. In comparing these percentages to that of the prior year, it illustrates tliat the 
percentage share of revenue received in relation to State and Federal sources has decreased slightly and the revenue from State Aid 
and charges for services reflects a small increase. The percent of revenue received from Property tax remained consistent with that 
of the prior year. The total revenue of the governmental funds including transfers in for 2020 was.$77,460,412 and the total 
expenditures were $78,633,292 with the majority of the expenditures designated to instructional and support service costs. 
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Governmental Funds - The focus of the Watertown School District's governmental funds is to provide infonnation on current 
revenues, expenses and balances of available r~ources. This information is usefal in assessing the District's current financia\ 
condition and will assist in the assessment of the District's projected financial position. The changes in the reserved and unreserved 
fund balances serve as a useful measure of the net resources available for spending ~t the end of the. fiscal year. 
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The District's governmental funds ended the year with a combined net position of$86,300,58I. The majority of this amount is 
restricted for General Fund, Capital Outlay, Special Education, Post-Secondary, Perkins, LA TI Foundation, Arrow Education 
Foundation and SDRS Pension-. $35,594,752. There is also an amount reserved for the District's investment in fixed assets -
$40,559,384. The remaining amount is unrestricted - $10,146,445 or 12% of the total net position .. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS- FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF DISTRICT Ft'NDS 

The School Board was presented with a preliminary budget for their review and consideration on May 13, 2019, as prescribed by 
state statutes. Following the Board's review, the 2020 operating budget was adopted on July 8, 2019, with a few minor modifications. 
The Board approved amendments to the budget'on October 14, 2019 {llld June 8, 2010. The budget revisions reflected additional 
State and Federal grant dollars along with an increase in the anticipated use of cash to accommodate the expenditures. The financial 
analysis of individual District funds is reflected in the following notes and comments along wlth supporting information of the major 
operating funds and business-type activities: 

General Fund: Budgeted Actual Positive/(Negative) ~ 
Revenue $28,730,555 $27,836,574 $893,981 96.8% 
Expenses $29,111,900 $26,356,045 $2,755,855 90.5% 

($381,345) $1,480,522 

The revenue originally anticipated a use of cash on hand of$38 l ,34S. The revenue was within a couple percent of the anticipated 
amount and the expenditures were significantly below the budgeted amount. Several factors played a role in the fund balance 
increasing by $1,480,529. Non-anticipated CARES funding in the amount of $291,000 off-set three contracted instructor days in 
preparation for online learning as well as payments to classified employees for time paid, not worked during the spring school 
closure. Salary and benefit costs came in at 93% of budgeted expenditures due to not filling open classified positions in the spring. 
A budgeted 'transfer of$374,000 to the Special Education Fund was not needed. The June 30, 2020 ending fund balance of the 
General Fund was $7,458,218 or 28 .. 2% of the fiscal year;s expenditures. The increase, as anticipated in the adjusted budget, is in 
large part attributed to the transfer in of $1.5 million from the Pension Fund. 

Capital· Outlay: 
Revenue 
Expenses 

Budgeted 
$7,117,980 
$7,575,480 
($457,500} 

. Actual 
$7,258,466 
M,606,452 

$652.011 

Pos1tive/{Negative) 
($140,486) 
$969,028 

% 
101.9% 
87.2% 

The 2019-20-budget called for the use of cash on hand of $457,500. The revenue_exceeded the budgeted amount, whereas 
expenditures came in 12% below anticipated. The transfer to the General Fund in support of salary costs was $426,000 less than 
anticipated. Activity in this fund will increase in the 2021 year with. the High School renovation project and support from Capital 
Outlay Certificates. The ending fund balance of this-fund as of June 30, 2020 is $13,919,512, with notation that $10,055,501 is held 
in trust for the Crossover Advanced Refunding. 

Special Education: 
Revenue 
Expenses 

Budgeted 
$7,146,170 
$7,393,375 
($247,205) 

P.,ctual 
$6,601,424 
$6,632,345 

($3Q.921) 

Positive/(Negative) 
$544,746 
$761,030 

~ 
92.3% , 
89.7% 

The Special Education Fund originally anticipated a use of $247,205 .in reserves. With expenditures at 89.7% of anticipated, this 
fund had a decline well below the adjusted budget. The use of cash generated an endi11g fund balance on June 30, 2020 of$216,918. 
This furid balance is 3 .2% of the. 20 I 9-20 expenses and is at a level of concern. The District has met its Maintenance of Local Effort 
as required by Federal regulations. As we move into the new fiscal year the Dfstrict continues to monitor this fund with continued 
ways to .accommodate the needs of its Special Education students at affordable means. It is hard to forecast this fund as high cost 
student needs can move in and out of the District with no prediction. If necessary, the District will look to accommodate the 
continued decline through the Extraordinary Cost Fund. 
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LA TI-Post Secondary: 
· Revenue 

Expenses 

Budgeted 
$25,648,730 
$29,180,005 
($3,531.275) 

Actual 
$26,321,179 
$27,148.266 

($827,087} 

Positive/(Negative) 
($672,449) 
$2,031,739 

~ 
102,6% 
93.0% 

The financial activity ofLATI-PostSecondary Fund reflects a financial loss of$827,087 which was well below the anticipated 
loss of$3,53 l,275. The budgeted loss was in direct relation to the construction and equipment needs of the Prairie Lakes . 
Healthcare Center of Leaming. Several expenditure line items came in well below budget due to COVID, particularly utility costs, 
travel, supplies/fuel, and purchased services. The June 30, 2020 fund balance of$7,633,903 or 28% of expenditures leaves this 
fund in great financial health. With activity in this fund hard to predict due to fluctuating enrollment, timing of 
construction/equipment needs and varying State support it is appropriate to have a steady fund balance to accommodate 
expenditures and revenue fluctuations. 

LA Tl-Financial Aid: 
Revenue 
Expenses 

Budgeted 
$12,241,300 
$12,241,30Q 

$0 

Actual 
$11,755,639 
$11,755,639 

$0 

Positive/(Negative) 
$485,661 
$485,661 

% 
96.0% 
96.0% 

The LA TI-Financial Aid Fund was first considered a major fund in 2011 due to its increased activity related to the distribution and 
recording of Direct Student Loans. This Fund accounts for the student financial aid provided to the students attending Lake Area 
Technical Institute. · 

. Other Funds - As noted earlier, the District's Business-type/Proprietary Funds show a decrease in Net Position in the amoont of 
$110,124. The District has two Internal Service Funds with the Self-funded Insurance Trust reflecting virtually all of the activity. 
The other Internal Service Fund is the Unemployment Trust Fund. Combined activity of these Internal Service Funds reflects a net 
decrease in Net Positions in the amount of$96,985. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT ADMINISTRATION . 

Capital Assets - The School Board has established its capitalization policy with the value of equipment to be listed at $5,000 and 
· building improvements at $25,000. The changes in the Capital Assets of the District were caused by several differ~nt factors: 
purchases1 disposals and current year depreciation. 

Governmental Activities June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 Change in Value · 
Purchase Value $109,525,575 $115,312,700 $5,787,125 
Atcum)lla\ed Depr. $47,609,670 $48,717,696 $1,108,026 
Value-Net Depreciation $61,915.905 $66,595.004 $4.679.099 

· Business-type Activities 
Purchase Value $590,456 $603,490 $13,034 
Accumulated Depr. $280,S!lli $3,17,219 $36,631 
Value-Net Depreciation $309,86~ $286,221 ~ 

A complete break.down of the District's capital assets and related depreciation can be. found on pages 42 and 43 of the 2020 Audit 
Report. 

Long-tentl Debt- The District has three Capital Outlay Certificate issues at year-end: Series 2016 related to the refuncjing of Series 
2011 with an outstanding principal amount of$ l ,250,000 and a maturity date of2027; Series 2014 related to the new Middle School 
with an outstanding principal amount of$13,555,000 and a maturity date of2026; and Series 2017 related to the Crossover Partial 
Advance Refunding of Series 2014 with an outstanding principal amount of$8,865,000 and a maturity date of2034. It again needs 
to be noted that Series 2017, new debt and the premiums paid on these Certificates allowed the District to place a significant amount 
in Trust for the payment of Capital Outlay Certificate debt in 2022. The balance in the Trust on June 30, 2019 was $10,055,50 l. 
The District enteretl into a Lease Purchase Agreement in relation to the purchase of High School laptop computers in the amowit of 
$1,453,920 with two installment payments made of$484,640 which leave a balance of$484,640 at year-end. The long-term debt 
also includes the approved Early Retirement Benefit to be paid in the amount of$747,819 ofwhicii the District's Pen~ion Fund is 
responsible for $592,312 and the Post-Secondary Fund's share is $155,507. Considering the refunding activity, the amortized 
payments made in relation to the Capital Outlay Certificates and the Early Retirement payments and approvals, the District's 
outstanding long-term debt is $26,619,864 as of June 30, 2020 with $10,055,501 held in Trust. A complete breakdown of the 
District's long-term debt can be found on page 43 and 44 of the Audit Report. 
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FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL FUTURE 

At the time these financial statements were prepared, the District was aware of the following circumstances that could significantly 
affect its financial condition in the future: 

• The District experienced an increase in the assessed value of the District in the amount of$80,057,423 or 3.3%, to a value 
of $Z,391,669,083. The State aid formulas for the General Fund and Special Education funds· are such that the District 
does. not benefit from the growth in those funds. During the 2016 legislative session, modifications were made that 
eliminated the taxing authority for tbe Pension Fund in which has been transferred into the General Fund and limited the 
growth in the Capital Outlay Fund to the rate of inflation and new property growth. The Capital Outlay Fund no longer 
receives the full benefit of the increase in property value due to reassessments. The State Legislature· annually sets the 
maximum tax levy amounts the District can request in all taxing funds except the Debt Service Fund, which is established 
by an approved resolution voted upon by District patrons. 

• The primary source of revenue in the General Fund is based on the calctJiated State Aid formula in which received a 2% 
increase in the target salary amount for the 2020-21 year. The formula is driven by enrollment in which an increase of27 
students from the prior school year w.as seen. The formula calculates a target student-to-teacher ratio, based on a sliding 
scale by student f:llrollment in which the District derives from a scale of 15 to 1. The District's target number· of teachers 
is calculated by dividing the fall enrollment by the target student-to-teacher ratio. Instructional need is then calculated by 
multiplying the targeted number ofteachets by the statewide target for average teacher salary, and increasing that total by 
29% for benefits. The total instructional need is increased by 31 % to cover non-instructional costs. This category includes 
operating costs as :well as salaries and benefits of non-instructionat staff, such as' administrators, counselors, librarians, 
and school nurses. These steps calculate the District's total need for State Aid. Local effort is applied against the total 
need, with the State providing any necessary funds to achieve the total need as identified as State Aid. 

• On March 13, 2020 President Trump signed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act in which $13.5 
billion was set aside for Elementary and Secondary schools to assist through the CO VID-19 pandemic. The State of' South 
Dakota was awarded $41,000,000 under the Fund in which was awarded to school districts based on Title I allocations, of 
which Watertown was awarded $697,000 or $162/student. The funding period of this grant runs from March 1'3, 2020 and 
expires on September 30, 2022. Lake Area Tech received $1.7 million in CARES funding in which half of the funding 
was identified as allocations to be made to students. In addition to the CARES allocation the District received $1.9 milliQn 
in Coronavirus ReliefFund' s to support K-n education. This allocation was awarded to school districts at $500 per student. 
using enrollment counts based on fall 2020 census enrollment. This funding was awarded with notation that as an 
administrative convenience, the US Treasury's guidance would not require schools to document specific use of funds. At 
the time of this report, Lake Area Tech has been granted an additional $2.9 million of CARES allocation with notation of 
$884,081 to be awarded to studenis. A second round of CARES ESSER funding is identified to be allocated in the FY22 
school year with $2,083,4?0 identified for the District with the availability of these funds running through September, 
2023. 

• Construction of the Prairie Lakes Healthcare Center of Learning is complete at the time of this report. The original contract· 
was $5,164,600 with approved change orders in the amount of $12,352.40 f<?r. a project total of $5,176,952.40. This 
contract total does not account for architectural and equipment/furniture costs associated with the project. 

• The High School Rem;>vation Project 6egar;i during the summer of2020 with Gray Construction serving as the Construction 
Manager at Risk. The current contract for the project is $13,658,089 with approved change orders to date of$66,350 with 
a total contract sum to date of$13,724,439. This contract total does not account for architectural support and a separate 
equipment/furniture allocation identified as $735,000. Capital Outlay Certificates in the amount of$1S,000,000 in support 
of this project have been received. The project construction calendar will encompass three summers and two school years 
with a completion date following the summer of 2023. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors of the. Watertown School 
District with a general overview of the District's finances· and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it ;receives. 
lfyou have questions about this report or need additional financial infonnation, please feel free to contact the Watertown School 
District's Business Office, P.O. Box 730, Watertown, SD 57201. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2020 

Prima!! Government 
Governmenlal Business-Typr 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS. 
Cash and Cash Equ1_valents $ 33,921,634 $ 1,846,487 $ 35,768,121 
Cash with Fiscal Agent, 10,055,502 10,055,502 

• Investments, at Fair Value 6,684,476 6,684,476 
Twces Receivable , 9,15~.973 9,158,973 
Internal Balances (28,246) 28,246 
Accounts Receivable, Net 148,617 95,748 244,365 
Due from Other Governments 1,460,348 1,274 1,461,622 
Student Loans Receivable 426,611 426,611 
Tu1t1on Receivable 97,852 97,852 
Inventories 2116,793 , 262,Q34 508,827 
Prepaid Expenses 90,063 90,063 
Due from External Parties 3,7'67 3,767 
Net Pension Asset 156,240 
Capital Assets 

4,444 , 160,684 

Land, Construction ID Progress and Investment ID Joint Venture 13,233,087, 13,23_3,087 
Other Capital Assets, Net ofDeprec1auon 53,361,917 286,271 53,648,188 

TOTAL ASSETS $ ,128 927,571 $ 2,614,567 $ 131,542,138 

· .DEFERRED OUTFWWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 8,003,967 227,670 8,231,637 
OPh"'B Related Deferred Outflows 263,558 263,5S8 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 8,267,525 227,670 8 495 195 

LlABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $ 2,829,060 $ 49,S54 $ 2,878,614 
Other Current L1ab1ht1es 5,297,757 147,649 5,445,406 
Accrued Interest on Long-Tenn Debt 163,575 163,575 
µmg-Term Liab1ht1es 

Due w1thm One Year 2,117,557 2,117,557 
Due m more than One Year 27 801 739 27,801 739 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,209 688 197,203 38,406,891 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Taxes Levied for Future Penod 9,074,426 "9,074,426 
Pension Related Deferred Inflows 3,255,618 92,604 3,348,222 
OPEB Related Deferred Irtflows 17,819 17,819 
Other Deferred Inflows of Resources 336 964 336,964 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 12,684,827 92,604 12,777,431 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment m Capital Assets 40,559,384 286,271 40,845,655 
Restricted for 

Capital Outlay 13,919,512 13,919,512 
Special Education 216,918 216,918 
Post Secondary 7,633,903 7,633,903 
LA TI Foundation 5,835,513 5,835,513 
Perkms . 570,459 570,459 
Arrow 'Education Foundation 2,513.,858 .. 2,513,858 
SDRS Pens10n Purposes 4,904,589 139,310 5,044,099 

Unrestncted 10,146,44S 2 126,649 12,273,o<J4 

'l"OTAL NET POSITION . $ 86,300,581 $ 2,552,430 $ ·88,85\011 

The.accompany1Dg notes are an mtegral part ofthts statement. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1~ 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For tile Year Ended Jane 30, 2020 

Functions/Programs 

GOVER."IMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Instructton 
Support Services-
Commumty Services 
Cocumcular Activities 
Nonprogrammed Charges 
Interest and Fees on Long-Tenn Debf• 

Total Governmental ActtYl!tes 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Food Services 
Stuc;!ent SC1V1ces 
Daycare and Pre-school ServtCes 
Dnvers Education 

Total Business-T~ ActtY!Ues 

Total Prunary Government 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes 

Gross Rece1iits Taxes 
Revenue l'rom State Sources 

State Aid 

Revenue From lntennediate Sources 

Investment Earnings 

Loss on D1sposal of Assets 
Transfen In (Out) 
Total General Revenues and Transfers -

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 

NET POSITION, ENDING 

Expenses 

$ 39,080,873 $ 

36,843,351 
38,278 

1,107,891 
747,819 
815,080 

78,633,292 

2,178,966 
2,448,075 

317,447 

8,402 
4,9S2,890 

$ 83,586,182 $ 

• The D1stnct does not have mterest expense related to the functions prc:sented above 

Th~ accompanymz notes are an integral part of this statement 

Proe!!m Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grantsaad 
Services Contributions Contributions 

12,681,644 $ 17,57!!,803 $ 306,589 

1,268,792 425.,311 41,534 

81,875. 66,800 

14,032,311 18,004,114 414,923 

1,113,281 872,506 
2,482,398 44,270 

268,026' 44,135 

3,863,705 960,911 

17,896,016 $- 18,965,025 $ . 414,913 

Tots ll,lllount includes Indirect interest expense on gcnera]Jong-te~ debt 
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Net (Expense) Reven11e 

and Changes in Net l>osition 
Primary Government 

Govemmental Business-Typt 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (8,513,837) $ $ (8,513,837) 
(35,107,714) (35,107,714) 

(38,278) (38,278) 
(959,216) (959,216) 
(747,819) (747,819) 
(815,080} (815,0S0r 

(46,181,944} (46,181,944} 

(193,179) (193,179) 
78,593 78,593 
(5,286) (5,286) 
{8,402) (8,402) 

(118,274) (128J74) 

(46,181,944) (128,274) (46,310,218)' 

19,596,301 19,596,301 
324,735 324,735 

23,641~04 23,641,204" 
426,742 426,742 

1,001,082 37,150 1,038,232 

53,254 53,254 
19,000 {19,000} 

45 062 318 18150 45 080 468 

(1,119,626) (110,124) (1,229,759) 

87,420,207 2,662,554 90,082,761 

$ 86,3001581 $ 2,5521430 $ 8818531011 



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

BALANCESHEET-GOVERNMENTALFL'NDS 
June 30, 2Q20 

Special Post Finucial LATI Other Total 
General Capital Outlay Education Secondary Aid Foundation Gover,unental Govemmeptal 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fud Fund Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Eqwvalents $ 8.912,858 $ 4,471,567 $ 705,687 $ 9,824,600 $ 286,554 $ 2,339,715 $ 222,419 $ 26,763,400 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 10,055,.502 10,055,502 
Investments, at Fair Value 4,211,052 2,473,424 6,684,476 
Taxes Receivable, Current 4,427,434 2,949,833 1,697,159 9,074,426 
'Taxes Receivable, Debnquent 42,053 27,719 14,775 84,547 
Accollhts Receivable, Net 22,193 5,577 7,092 298 38,696 73,856 
Due from Other Funds 66,376 1,085 67,461 
Due frol11 Other Governments 1,023,074 228,979 208,295 1,460,348 
Student Loans Receivable 426,611 426,611 
Tmtton Receivable 97,852 97,852 

Invent~· Sueehes 168,532 78,261 246,793 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,662,520 $ 17,504,621 s 2,652,177 $ 10~17,185 $ 286,852 $ 6,589,463 $ 3,f22,454 $ 55,035,272 

LJABIUTIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

L1allil11ies: 
Accounts Payable $ 180,885 s 553,829 $ 82,085 $ 941,663 $ 286,852 $ 753,950 $ 24,796 s 2,829,060 
Contracts Paya:ble 1,899,925 498,017 1,151,243 3,549,185 
Payroll Deducttons, W1thholdmgs and 

Employer Matching Payable 479,776 136,057 274,623 890,456 
Due to Other Funds 48,718 7,166 36,046 91,940 
Amounts Held for Others 30,313. 30,313 

Total Ltabtlmes 2,560,586 607,557 723,325 2 433 888 286,852 753,950 24,796 7,390,914 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Taxes Levted for Future Penod 4,427,434 2,949,833 1,697,)59 9,074,426 
Unavatlablo Revenue • Property Taxes 42,053 27,719 14,775 84,547 
Other Deferred Inflows of Resources 174,229 ·149,394 13,341 336,964 

Total DefetTed Inflows of Resources 4 643 716 2 977 552 I 711934 149 394 13 341 9 495 937 

Fund Balances. 
Nonspendable • Inventc>ry & Prepaid Expenses 168,532 78,261 246,793 
Restncted - Capital Oµtlay 13,919,512 13,919,512 
Restncted • Spec[al Educatton 216,918 216,918 
Restncted • Post Secondaty 7,555,642 7,555,642 
Restncted • Perktns 570,459 570,459 
Restncted ·. LAT! Foundit1on · 5,835,513 5,835,513 
Restncted • Arrow Educatton Foundation 2,.513,858 2,513,858 
Assigned· Next Year's Budget 9J7,965 91'7,965 
Unoss1 ed ' 6,371,721 6,371,721 

Total Fund Balances 7,458,218 . 13,919 512- 216,918 7,633,903 5,835,513 3 084,317 38 148,381 

TOTAL LIABILITitS, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND Ft:ND BALANCES $ 141662,520 $ 17,504,621 $ 2,6S2-,177 $ 10,217,185. $ 236i!52 $ 6,589,463 s 3,122,454 $ 55.035,272 

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of tins statemen~ 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE 
SHEET TO·THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2020 

total Fund Balances- Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
are different because: 

Net pension asset reported in governmental activities is not an available 
fmancial resource and therefore is not reported in the funds. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported_in the governmental funds. The cost of the assets 
is ~115,312,700 and the accumulated depreciation is $48,717,696 

Pension and OPEB related deferred outflows are components of noneurrent liabilities 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. · 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at 
year-end consist of: 

Capital outlay certificates, 
Unamortized premium on certificates 
Early retirement benefits payable 
Other long-tenn liabilities 
Other postemploYID;ent benefits 

Accrued interest on long-tenn debt. 

Property tax revenue recorded in the fund statements exceeded delinquent tax 

revenue accrued on the District-wide statements. 

P.ension and OPEB related deferred inflows are components of noncurrent liabilities 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
activities, such as insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities 
of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the 
statement of net position. 

Net Position - Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

38,148,381 

156,240 

66,595,004 

8,267,525 

(23,670,000) 
(I,717,40?) 

(747,819) 
(484,640) 

(3,299,432) 

(163,575) 

84,547 

(3,273,437) 

6,405,192 

. 86,300,581 



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND JIALANCES • GOVERNMENT AL FL'NDS. 

For t-e Year Elided June 30, 2020 

Special Post Finaacial LATI Other total 
Ge■eral Capital Oatlay Educatiea Secoadary Aid Fouadatioa Gover■meatal Governmental 

Fund FHRd Fund Fuad Fllnd Fuad F111tds Fllads 

REVENUES 
Revenue from Local Sources 

Taxes 
Ad Valorcm Taxes $ 9,446,170 $ 6,360,467 $ 3,573,507 $ $ $ $ $ 19,380,144 
Other Taxes 71,437 37,841 21,259 130,5'39 
Pnor Years· Ad Valorem Taxes 38,468 25,409 13,351 259 77,487 
Gross Receipts Taxes 124,735 324,735 
Penalties and Interest on Taxes 17.032 10.504 5,634 93 33,263 

Tuition and Fees 16.000 11,625,724 11,641,724 
Cocumcular ActtYltles 7:!.935 407,715 481,650 
Other Pup,1 Act1Y1ty Income 7,940' 7,940 
Rentals 97,631 97,631 
Contributtoos and Dona11ons 1,547,818 107,637 l,655,455 
Earnings on Investments Hlld Deposits ]00,32] 500.165 7,166 171,026 181,298 39,417 999.393 
Special Events and Fundra1sms 156,464 156,464 
Realized and Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments (61,619) 63.308 1,689 
Other Local Revenue 260~07 66,800 77,572 2,689,442 45,300 189 3,139,815 

Total Revenue from Local Sources 10,438,176 1,001,188 3,714,;(89 14,893,912 45,300 1,823,961 210,903 38,127,929 

Revenue from Intermediate Sources 
County Sources 416,481 416,481 
Revenue 1n Lieu of Taxes 10,261 10261 

Total Revenue from Intermediate Sources 426,742 426 742 

Revenue from State Sources 
Grants-111-Aid 

Unrestncted Grants-m-A1d 12,3.99,012 7,023,751 19,422,763 
Restncted Grants-m-Ald 2,094,460 3.044,539 85.488 5,224,487 
Other State Revenue 962,348 41 .534 I 003,882 

Total Revenue from State Sources l:,261,%0 41,534 2,094,460 10,068,290 85,488 25,651,132 

Revenue from Federal Sources 
Grants-ih·Ald 

Restnctcd Grants-m-A1d 1,479,789 792,476 1,347,745 3,620,010 
Other Federal Revenue 8.3,053 11624851 11,707 904 

Total Revenoe from Federal Sources I 562 842 792476 1 347 745 11624851 15327914 

Total Revenue 25,789.120 7,04~722 6,601,425 26,309,947 11,7S5,639 t,823,961 210,903 79,533,717 

EXPENDITVRES 
lµstruct1onal Services 

Regular Programs 
Elementacy 8,003,376 644,826 8,648,202 
Middle School 2,384,493 33,634 2,418,127 
High School 4,411,504 139,145 4,550,649 

Special Programs 
Gifted and Talented 104,083 104,083 
Programs for Special Education 4,625,254 4,(,25,254 
Other 1,189,974 9,040, 245,893 1,444,907 
Post Second!!!:z: Occuet111onal Pro!!!!!!!•· 11,282,664 11,282,664 

Total Instruct1onal Servtces 16 093 430 826,645 4,625,254 11228,557 33,073,886 
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WATERTOWN SC)IOOLDISTIUCT N0.14-4 

STATEMENT OF REVENt:ES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN .FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

For the Year ((:aded Jue 30, 2020 

Special Post Financial LATI Other Total 
Geaeral Capital Outl1y Educatipa Secoadary Aid Fo■ndatlo• · Goveramelltal GoveremeRtal 

Fand Fuad Faad Fund F11nd FaRd F■nds Fu11ds 

Suppott Services. 
Pupils 

Attcnda,ncc and Soctal Work 335,127 1,36,3,062 1,691!",189 

Health 190,939 173,190 364,1'29 

Gtudance 724,lS5 l,532,687 2,256,842 

Psycholog1cal Services 260,415 260,415 

Speech, Pathology and Audiology 702,055 102,055 

OccupallOna\ Therapy 396,038 396,038 

Fmanc1al Aid 11,755,639 389,397 12,145,036 

Library/Media 12:i,550 125,550 

Other 1,504,077 1;504,077 

lnstruct1onal Staff 
Improvement of Instruction 655,606 114,745 770,351 

Educational Media 966,.506 7,895 315,986 1,290,387 

General Admm1strat1on 
Board of Educallon 73,754 36,922 110,676 

Commun11}' Relations 300,970' 300,970 

Executive Admwstratton 543,.347 68,290 611,637 
Beneficiary Costs 3,415,515 140,815 3,556,330 

Fundramng 160,247 48,970 209,217 

Management and General 52,293 20,302 72,595 

School Admuustratlon 
Office of the Pr1nc1pal 1,723,769 758,882 2,482,651 

Busmess 
Fiscal Services S29,824 15,874 261,146 806,844 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2,528,279 263,573 2,304,139 5,095,991 
Pupil Transportation 851,014 5,172 109,000 11,793 996,919 

Central 
Staff 49,266 20,577 716,077 785,920 

Special Education 
Adrnm1stra1Jve Costs 216011 216011 

Total Stieeon Servtces 9,171,-586 284,619 1,999 926 9J19.581 11,755,639 3.,§_28,055 599,484 36,758,890 

Commuruty Services 
Non bite School 38278 18,278 

Total Commum!l: Services 38,278 38,278 

Cocumcular Act1V1t1es. 
Male ActlVllles 205,529 205,529 
Female..Act1v1t1es I 79,6Q6 179,606 
Transpottauon Acllvmes 115,899 115,899 
Combined Acllvllles 551 717 55140 606 g57· 

Total Cocumcular ActiVIlles 1052751 55140 1.107 891 

Nonprogrammed Charges 
Esl:z: Retirement Pa:z:!!!ents 102,228 445,654 547,882 

Total Nonerol!!:amm•d C!!!!:ses 102,228 445,654 547,882 



WATERTOWN SCHOOLl>ISTIUCJ'N0.14-4 

STATEMENT OF Rl:VENCES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND"'BALANCES • GOv_ERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

For tile Year End<td J■ne 30, 202_0 

Special Post Fi■ancial LATI Otller Total 
Geaeral Capital Outlay Edacatioa Secoadary Aid. Fo■ndation Goverameatal Goverameatal 

Fund F■ad F11■d Fuad FHd Fa11d Funds F■nds 

Debt Services 2 343 8S0 2 343 850 

Cae1ta1 Outlal:'.! !2,172,471 6,186,669 3,359,140 

Total ~nd:itures · 26,356,045 5,682,725, 6,625,180 27,137,035 11,755,639 3,628,055 1,045,138 82,229,817 

. EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) ' 
EXPENDITURES (566,925) 1,359,997 (23,755) (827,088) () ,804,094) (834,235) (2,696, I 00) 

OTHER FINANCING SOCll.CES (USES) 
Sale of Property 196,745 196,745 
Transfers In 2,047,454 19,000 2,066,454 
Transfers Out (923,728) (7,166) p1116,s60J (2,047,454) 

Total Other Financ!!!B, Sources (Uses) 2,047,454 (707,983) 17,166) !1,116,560) 215,745 

NI::T CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,480,529 652,014 (30,921) (827,088) (1,804,094) (1,950,795) (2,480,355) 

FUND BALANCE, Bl!!'GINNING $ 5,977,689 $ 13,267,498 $ 247,839 s 8,460,221 $ $ 7,639,607 $ S,035,112 $ 40,628,736 

FUND BALANCE, ENDING f 7,458,218 $ 13,919,512 $ 21~9\8 $ 7,633,903 $ $ Sil3S1513 $ 3,084,317 S. 38,148,381 

The accompanying notes are m integral part oftlus statement 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVER'l"MENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CH.i\.NGF,:S IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT Of ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported •as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

In the statement of activities, a gain of $53,254 on disposal of capital assets is 
reported, whereas, in the governmental funds, the proceeds of -$196, 7 45 from the 
disposal of capital assets is reflected, regardless of whether a gain or loss is realized. 

Capital contribution of fixed assets. 

The fund financial statement governmental fund property tax accruals differ from the 
District-wide statement property tax accruals in that the fund financial statements 
require tire amounts to J:>e "available." 

Change in early retirement payable. 

Change in accrued interest on long-tenn debt. 

Current debt principal reduction on long-term debt. 

Governmental funds do not reflect the change in Other Post Employment Benefits 
("OPEB"), but the :statement of activities reflects the change in Ol'EB through 
expenditures. 

Changes in the pension related deferred outflows/infiows are direct components 
Qfpension liability (asset) and are not reflected in the governmental funds. 

Internal service funds are used by mal).agement to charge the costs of certain 
activities, such as insurance to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal 
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERl'llMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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4,516,001 
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(199,937) 
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1,527,409 

(167,261) 

(4,357,82_5) 

(96,985) 

(1,119,626) 



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. t.c-4 

S'I'ATEMENT OF NET POSmoN - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June JO, 2020 

Enfe!]!ri,se Funds 
Nlltritioa Drivers Pre-Sthool LATIFood LATI Total 
Sel'Yices Contessions Ed1ll:11tion Servitts Bookstore Servite Daycare Enterprise Intenial 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fllnd Fund Funds Service Funds 

ASSETS 
Cunent Assets 

Cash and Cash Eqmvalcnts , $ 744.197 $ 37.508 $ 3,187 $ 17,383 $ 947,706 $ 2,867 $ 93,639 $ 1,846,487 $ 7,158,234 
Accounts Receivable, Net 26'.3 602 86,886 7,997 95,743 74,761 
Due from Other Funds 28,246 28,246 
Due from Other Governments 1,274 1,274 
JnventOI)' of Food, Suppltes ai,d Commodities 22,175 5,414 223,506 10,939 262,034 
Pr5!!!!d Expenses 90,063 90,063 

Total Current Assets 766,635 43,524 3,187 17,383 1,376,407 13,806 102,910 2,323,852 7,232,995 

Noncurn:nt Assets 
Net Pension Asset 2,238 113 )2 '740 71,1 , 610 4,444 

Capital Assets 
Equipment 543,789 5,847 12,979 27,841 13,034 603,490 
Less Accumulated D~reciation ~,159) (3,021) (12,919) (15,974) (1,086) (317,219) 

Total Noncurrcnt Assets 261 868 2,939 32 740 12 578 12 558 290 715 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,028,503 46,463 3,187 17,415 1,377,147 26,384 115,468' 2,614,567 7,232,995 

DEFEllRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension Related Deferred Outflows ll'l 666 5 794 1,627 37903 36420 31260 -227 670 

TOTAL DEFER.RED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 114,666 5,794 1,627 37,903 36,,420 31,260 227,670 

LIABILITIES 
Current L1ab1fi11es, 

Accounts Payable 11,510 460 34,847 1,112 1,625 49,554 
Contracts Payable 6,253 1,170 ,66 1,096 1,121 6,849 16,855 
Due to Other Funds 
Incurred but not Reported CIIIIIllS 827,803 
Payroll Oeducttons, Withholdings and 
Employer Matching Payable 1,421 159 327 86 2,036 4,029 

De[!Osits Pa;i:able 96;356 30,338 71 126,765 

Total-<:urrent Liabtltlles 115 540 1,329 826 I 423 65,185 2,319 IO 581 197 203 827 803 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 115,540 1,329 826 1.423 65,185 2 319 JO 581 197 203 827 803 _ 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
• Pension Related Deferred Inflows 46,640 2 357 662 15 417 14,813 12 115 92 604 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 46,640 2,357 662' 15,417 14,813 12,715 92,604 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital.Assets 259,630 2,826 11,867 11,948 286,271 
Restrtcted for SDRS Pension Purposes 70,264 3,550 997 23,226 22,318 19,155 139,510 
Unrestricted 651 095 42 19S 2 361 15 960 1311,222 !I,487 92,329 2,126 649 6,405 192 

TOTAL NET PosmoN $ 980,989 $ 48,571 $, 2,361 $ 16,957 $ 13'34448 $ 45 672 $ 123,432 s 2 552,430 $ 6 405 192 

The a~companying notes are- an integral part of tlus statement 

-30-



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1-4-4 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPlNSES AND CHANGES 1N 
Ft'ND NET POSITION· PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Vear Ended June JO, 2020 

Eale!]!rise Fvnds 
Nutrition Drivers Pre-School LATIFood LATI Total 
Services Coacessions Education Services Bookstore Service Daycare ,Enterprise Internal 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Service Funds 

OPERATING REVENUE 
Food Sales . $ 637,174 $ 81,632 $ $ s $ 394,475 $ 12,847 $ 1,126,128 s 
Bookstote Sales 2,482,398 2,482,.398 
Daycare and Preschool Services 7,SIS 247,664 255,179 
Self-Insurance Premmms 6 622,083 

Total Q£eratmi1 Revenue 637,174 81,632 7,515 2,482,398 394,475 260,511 3,863,705 6,622,083 

'OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries 577,041 38,239 321 6,577 152,209 156,086 176,052 1,106,525 
Employee Benefits 231,141 9,939 6,450 1,794 64,410 79,724 100,685 494,143 
Purchased Services 25,443 114 67,200 13,060 11,542 117,359 
Supplies 73,643 1,417 1,611 4.420 25,235 3,698 ll0,044 
Cost of Sales • Purchased Goods 532,036 31,414 2,159,336 216,303 16,013 2,955,602 
Cost of Sales · ponated Food 118.598 ll8,598 
Repairs and Maintenance 857 857 
M1scellaneous 12.731 400 13,131 
Deprec1at1on 33,587 '.l90 1,568 1,086 36,631 
Unemployment Chums 5,083 
Self-Insurance Costs 6,812,716 

Total ~in& El<~nses 1,605,077 81,513 8,402 3,371 2,448,075 492,376 309,076 4,952,890 6,817,799 

OPERA TING INCOME {WSSl (967,903) 119 (8,402) (856) 34,323 !97,901) (48,565) (1,089,185) (195,716) 

NONOPERATING REVENUE 
Local Sources 

Interest Earned 13,223 99S 21,602 4,21 909 37,150 98,731 
State Sources 

Cash Re1mbursemcnts 6,482 6,482 
Federal Sources 
Cash Retmbursements 713,046 44)70 34,.380 44,13S 835,831 
Donated l:ood ll8,598 118,598 

TOTAl. NONOPERA TING REVENUE 351,349 99S 6sg72 34,801 ' 45,044 998,061 93 731 

INCOME BEFORE TRANSliERS (! 16,554} 1,114 (S,il02} (&56) 100.195 (63,100) (3,521) (91,124} (96,985) 

Transfer Out (19,000) (19,000) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION !116,554) "(17,886) (3,402) (856) 100,195 (63,100) (3,521) (110,124) (96,985) 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 1,097,543 66,457 10,763 17,813, 1,234,253 108,772 126,953 2,662,554 6,502,177 

NET l'OSITION2 ENOING $ 980,989 $ 48i5'71 $ 2,361 $ 16,957 $ 1,334,448 $ 45,672 $ 123,432 s . 2,552,430 $ 6,40,1192 

The accompanYll!g notes are an mtewal part of this statement 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

STATEMENT OF CASH '.FLOWS· PR.Ol'RIETAll,Y FUNDS 
Fer the Year E■ded Ji,110 30, l0l0 

ERte!J!ri .. Fvads 
'reta! NetrltlH Drivers Pre-Scheel LATIFee4 LATI 

Servlcu COHCe!SitUtl Educatl"" SeJVices Bookstore Service Daycare Eaterprist lateralll 
Fead F,,nd Fund FYHd F11ad FHRd FuRd FaHdS Service Faads 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIEs 
Rece1pts Crom Customers s 678,514 s 81,233 · s 4.,640 $ 7,515 s 2,229,738 s 394,161 $ 265,587 $ 3,662,09$ $ 

Receipts (Payments} for lnterfund S~ces ProVided (29,252) 1S,262 (13,99o') 6,585,377 
Payments to Suppliers (704,293) (3S,652') (2,568) (~.253, 734) (262,703) (31:4S8) 0,290,408) 
Payments lo Employees (743,501) (43,214) (114) (8.436) (197.709) (209,724) (222,155) (1,424,830) 
Claims and Administrative Ex2enses Paid {6, 700,030l 

Net Cuh fn,m O(?!r•tiag Activities (769,2822 2J67 1,988 {921l (2S019522 (62,29:!} ll 1974 {l,067,133l (114,653J 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING Acnvrrn;:S 
O~rating Subs,dics "719,528 44,270 34,380 44,135 1142,313 
Transfer Out 19000 19000 

Net Cash fro111 Nawcal!il•I Flnanciag Activities 119,523 {19,000} 44,270 34,380 44,135 123,313 

CASI!- FLOWS f)tOM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Purchase ofCal!ital Assets {13,034 OJ in,o34l 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ~CTIVITIES 
Interest Eaminll! 13 223 99S 21602 421 909 37 ISO 98 731 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH .EQUIVALENTS (36,536) (1S,638) 1,988 (921) (185,085) (27,496) 41,984 (219.704) (15,922) 

CASH AND CASH Egt'IVALENTS, BEGINNING 780,733 53,146 I 199 18,.304 · 1,132,7?1 30,363 49,655 2,066,191 7,174,156 

CASH AND CASH E~L'IV A.LENTS, ENDlNG s 7441191 $ 371S08 s 31187 $ 17,383, $ 947,706 s 2,867 $ 93.639 $ 118461487 s 1,1ssi234 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 

Operallng Income (Loss) s (967,903) $ 119 $ (8.402) $ (856) $ 34,.323 S, {97,901) s (48.56S) . $ (1,089,115) s (195,716) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 
Net Cash from Operaung Actmlles 
Depreciation Expense 33.587 390 1,568 1.086 36.631 
Cost of Sile.! • Donated food IIS,S98 111.S9& 

Chang~ in Assets and Liabilities. 
(Increase) Decrease m: 

Acco\.lntS Receivable (263) (399) 4,640 (10,751) 393 S,S2S (S55) (36,706) 
Due (to) from Other Funds (29,252) 15,262 (13,990) 
Inventories (7.990) (2,707) (15,938) 1,1.79 (25.456) 
Prcp11d Expenses (6.051) (6,051) 
Net Pension Asset '(1.713) (81) 40 (30) (600) (526) (99) (3,009) 
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 57,654 4,712 8575 (289} 15,974 27,122 58,BJJ 172,579 

Increase (Decrease) ut 
Accounts Payable (51,593) (937) (289) (UM) (205) (61.908) 117,769 
Contracts Payable 240 45 3220 42 (1,748) 172 (927) 
Payroll Deductions. Withholding 

Ol!d Employer Matclung Payable (21) 6 44.0 (9) (305) 719 434 
Deposits Payable 11,603 (241,909) (749) (201,055) 
Pension Related Deferred Inflows a,514 282 (~294) 221 3,.536 1,543 (S1041J 6,76] 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES S· {769128:!l s 21361 s 11988 $ '2.a12 $ (250,95~ $ (621297J $ 111974 s (1,01;1,n3l s (11416S3) 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Valuo of Commo4itres ltece,ve<I s 118,598 s s s $ ~ s $ 118.S98 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ohhis statement 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS . 
June 30, 2020 

·ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalen~ 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITiES 
Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 
Amounts Held for Others 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND NET P6SITION 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Agency 
Funds 

$ 489,766 

$ 489,766 

$ 2,089 
3,767 

483,910 
489,766 

$ 489,766 



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Reporting Entity . 
The reporting entity· of Watertown School District No. 14-4 ("District"), consists of the primary government (which 
includes• all of the funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments and offices that make up the legal entity, 
plus those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary responsibility, even though those fiduciary funds 
may represent organizations tlrat do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the financial reporting entity); thO'se 
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and other organizations for which the 
nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the 
financial reporting entity's finan_cial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are 
financially accountable. The District is financially accountable if its Governing Board appoints a majority of another 
organization• s governing body and it has the ability to impose its will on that organization, or there is potential for that 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the District (primary 
government). The District may also be financially accountable for another organization if that organiz.ation is fiscally 
dependent on the District. , 

The District has two component units. The Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation is an independent corporation 
organized for the benefit of Lake Area Technical Institute ("LA TI"). The primary focus of the Lake Area Technical 
Institute Foundation is to raise funds for student scholarships, establish scholarship levels, grant scholarships to 
students of LA 11, and support campus improvement projects, marketing efforts, and student, faculty and program 
enrichment. The Arrow Education Foundation is an independent corporation organized for'the benefit of the District. 
The primary focus of the Arrow Education Foundation is to support the advancement of education through scholarships 
and grants for costs associated with classroom activities and new program implementation for the benefit of students. 
Both Foundations are included in the reporting entity because of the nature and significance of the relationship with the 
primary government and are blended with major and nonmajor governmental funds, respectively. Both Foundations 
are unaudited. Separate component unit financial statements may be obtained from the LA Tl TEC Building and the 
Professional Development Center, respectively. , · · 

The ·oistrict participates in a cooperative service unit with eight other districts. See detailed Note 12 entitled Joint 
Venture for specific disclosures. 

Basis of Presentation 
District-wide Statements: 
The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. these statements 
include the fmancial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary funds and component units that are 
fiduciary in nature. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These. 
statements distinguish between the governrnental and business-type activities of the District, Governmental 
activities generally are fmanced through tax~s. intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange transactions. 
Business-type activities are financed-in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources, in a net position form ( assets minus 
liabilities equal net positi9n). Net position is displayed in three components, as _applicable, net investment in capital 
assets, restricted (distinguishing between major categories of restrictions) and ~estr/cted. 

The_ statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment · 
of the business-type activities of the District and for each function of ilie Di~ict's governmental ac;tivities. Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable 
to a particular function. Program revenues mclude (a) charges paid by recipients of goods and services offered by 
the .programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes,,are presented as 
general revenues. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DIS'f.RICT NO. 14-4 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Fund Financial Statements: 
Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a 

· separate accounting-entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a set of self-balancing accounts that constitute 
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major 
categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the 
District or it meets the following criteria: 

I. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise 
fund are at least ten percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and 

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise 
fund are at least five percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined, 
or 

3. Management has elected to classify one or more governmental or enterprise funds as major (or consistency 
in reporting from year to year, or because of public interest in the fund's operations. 

The funds of the District are described below within their respective fund types: 

Governmental Funds: . 
General Flllld - The General Fund is the general operating fund. It is used to accou,nt for all financial resources except 
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is always a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to' expenditure fo:r specified purposes other than deb! service or capital projects. 

• Capital Outlay Fund - The Capital Outlay Fund accounts for the resources designated for the lease of or 
acquisition of land, buildings, improvements of grounds, remodeling of buildings or for the purchase of 
equipment. This is a major fund. · · 

• Special Education Fund - The Special Education Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures associated 
with the cost of special education for all children in need of special assistance and prolonged assistance. This 
is a major fund. 

• Post Secondary Fund - The Post Secondary Fund accounts for all revenues and ex~nditures associated with 
operation of Lake Area Technical Institute, a school providing post secondary vocational education programs. 
This is a major fund. 

• Financial Aid Fund - The Financial Aid Fund accounts for the activity relating to ·the Lake Area Technical 
Institute student financial aid programs. This is a major fund. 

• Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation - This is an unaudited component unit. See description in third 
paragraph. This i~ a major fund. 

• Pension Fund - The Pension Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures associated with the District's 
early retirement plan. This is not a major fund. This fund was closed and transferred to the General Fund as 
of June 30, 2020. 

• Perkins Loan Fund - The Perkins Loan Fund accounts for lqans provided by Lake Area Technical Institute to 
its students under the Perkins Loan Program. This is not a major fund. 

• Arrow Education Foundation - This is an unaudited component unit. See description in third paragraph. This 
is not a_ major fund. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds: . 
Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external users 
for goods or services. Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if any one of the following criteria is 
met: · · 

a. · The activity is financed with debt that· is secured solely by a pledge of the het revenues from fees and 
charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge of net revenues from fees and charges and the full 
faith and credit of a related primary government or corµponent unit - even if that government is not 
expected to make any payments - is not payable solely from fees and charges of the activity. (Some debt 
may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds but should be considered as payable "solely" from 
the revenues of the activity.) · 

b. Laws- or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, including capital <,osts (such as 
depreciation or debt service), be recovered with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or s:imilar 
revenues. 

c: The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including.capital 
costs (such as depreciation or debt service). 

, - . 
• Nutrition Services Fund - The Nutrition Services Fund accounts for the operation of the school lunch and 

breakfast program. This is a major fund. 

• Concessions Fund - The Concessions Fund accounts for the operations of the concession program. This is a 
major fund. 

• Drivers Education Fund - The Drivers Education Fund accounts for the operations of the drivers education 
program. This is a major fund. 

• · Pre-School Services Fund - Tue Pre-School Services Fund accounts for the ,.operations of the pre:school 
program. This is a major fund. 

• Bookstore Fund- The 8Qokstore Fund accounts for the bookstore operations of Lake Area Technical Institute. 
This is a major fund 

• LA TI Food Services Fund - The LA TI Food Services Fund accounts for the food service operations of Lake 
Area T~chnical Institute. This is a major fund. 

• LA Tl Daycare Fu.no - The LA TI Daycare Fund accounts for the operations of the daycare facility at Lake 
Area Technical Institute. This is a major fund. 

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by 
one department or agency to other departments or agencies or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
The Self-Insurance Fund and the Unemployment Fund are the Internal Service Funds maintained by the District. The 
Internal Service Funds account for the activities of the District's group health self-insurance and the unemployment 
claims to other funds on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciruy Funds: 
Fiduciary Funds consist of the following sub-category and are never considered to be major fun~. 

Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for resources held by the District in a purely custodial capacity 
(assets equal liabilities). Since agency funds are custodial in nature they do not involve the measurement of the 
results of operations. _The District maintains a variety of agency funds. These funds are established to account for 
the monies earned by the student organizations for variQus expenditures. The. students of these organizations earn -
the· monies recorded in the agency funds and determine the appropriate expenditures based on the ptlrpose of the 

' stµdent organization. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) . 
The aggregate remaining fund inf onnation includes the nonmajor governmental funds, internal service funds and 
fiduciary fund. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are re.corded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and eXpenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus. · 

Measurement Focus . 
The district-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus, applied on the accrual basis of accounting. 

In the fund fmancial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting are applied to the governmental funds, while the economic resoutces measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting are applied to the proprietary and fiduciary fund types. 

Basis of Accounting 
In the district-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental and business-type activities 
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues and related 
assets generally are .recorded when earned (usually when the right to receive cash vests); and expenses and related 
li~bilities are recorded when an obligation is incurred (usually when the,obligation to pay cash in the future vests). 

In the fund financial statements, all governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Their revenues, including, property taxes, generally are re'cognized when they become measurable and 
available. "Available" means resources are collected or to be collected soon enough after the end of the fiscal year 
that they can be use~ to pay the bills of the current period. The accrual period for the District_ is sixty days. 

Under the modified. accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not available. Available means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of th.e current period. 
Unavailable revenues, where asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria 
have not been met, are reported as deferred inflow of resources. , 

E~penditures generally are recognized ~hen the related fund liability_ is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule 
include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recognized when due. ' 

All proprietary fund and fiduciary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their • 
revenues.are recognized when they are earned and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 

Deposits and Investments . 
Toe District follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of v,arious funds to maximize cash management 
efficiency and returns. The Fiduciary Funds, Financial Aid, Perkins, Self-Insurance and Unemployment Funds do not 
participate in aggregating cash. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by stttutes. ,These 
restrictions are summarized below. 

Deposits - Toe District's deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by SJ?CL 4-6A-1, 13-16-15.l 
and 13~16-18.1. Qualified depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their 
other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least I IO percent of the public deposit accounts which exceed 
deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible securities, a qualified public depository 
may furnish irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by federal home.loan banks accompanied by written evidence 
of that bank's public debt rating which may not be less than "AA" or better or a qualified public depository may furnish 
a corporate surety bond of a corporation authorized to do business in South Qakota. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Deposits are reported at cost plus ~terest, if the account is of the add-on type. 

State law allows income from deposits and investments to be credited to either the General Fund or the fund making 
the investment. The District's policy is to credit all income from investments to the fund making the investment. For 
fiscal year 2020, the District approved transferring the interest earnings from the Capital Outlay Fund, Special 
~ducation Fund and Pension Fund to the General Fund · 

The actual bank balances at June 30, 2020, were as follows: 

Insured (FDIC/NCUA) $ 578,571 
Uninsured, collateral jointly held by State's/District's agent in the name of the state 

and the pledging financial institution · 35,851,971 
$ 36,430,542 

The District's carrying amount of deposits on the June 30, 2020, balance sheet was $36,251,56.l. 

lnvestments - In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits District funds to b·e inv,ested in (a) securities of the United States and 
securities guaranteed by the United States government either directly or .indirectly; or (b) repurchase agreements fully 
collaieralized by securities described in (a) above; or in shares of an open.end, no-load mutual fund administered by an 
investment company whose investments are in s"Ccurities described in (a) above and repurchase agreements described in 
(b) above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9 requires investments to be in the physical custody of the political subdivision or may be 
deposited in a safekeeping account with any bank or trust company designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal 
agent. 

Fair Value Measurement - The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting· principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 'identical assets; Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District does not 
have any investments that are subject to the fair value Itleasurement of GASB Statement 72, with the exception of the 
investments of the Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation and the Arrow Education Foundation, which are both 
unaudited component units and the requited disclosures relate~ to these investments have been omitted as discussed in 
the basis for qualified opinion on page IO. · 

Interest Rate Risk - The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk - State law limits eligible inve-stments for the District, as discussed above .. The District has no investment 
. ·policy that would further limit its investment choices. 

Inventory 
Inventory held for consumption is stated at cost. Inventory for resale is stated at the lower of cost or market. . Toe cost 
valuation method is first-in, first-out (FIFO). Donated commt><iities are valued at estimated market values based on the 
USDA price list at date ofreceipt. · 

In the district-wide financial statements and in the enterprise fund fmancia1 statements, inventory items are initially 
recorded as assets and charged to expense in the various functions of government as they are consumed. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consuniption. The 
cost is recorded as an expenditure at .. the time individual inventory items are consumed. 

Student Loans Receivable 
Student loans receivable are loans provided by Lake Area Technical Institute to its students under the Perkins Loan 
Program. Toe financial aid office of the District is fully responsible for .administering the program including 
application processing, ·approving, disbursing and collecting the loans. Toe student loans receivab~e has been presented 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
as a noncurrent asset in the accompanying financial statements. The student loans receivable is net of an allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $117 ,.615. The allowance is calculated based upon the default rate for the past five years. 

Interfand Eliminations and Reclassifications 
District-Wide Financial Statements: 
In the process of aggregating data for the district-wide financial statements, some amounts.reported as interfund activity 
and balances in the fun~ financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified, as follows: 

1. In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental and business-type 
activities columns of the primary government, amounts reported as mterfund recejvable.s and payables have 
been eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns, except for the net, residual amounts 
due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances. 

2. fu order to minimize the doubling-up effect on internal service fund activity, certain "centralized expenses" 
including an administrative overhead q::nnponent, are charged as direct expenses to funds or programs in order 
to show all expenses that are associated with a service, program, department or fund. When expenses are 
charged, in this manner, expense reductions occur in the funds, so that expenses are reported only in the 
functions to which they relate. · 

Fund Financial Statements: 
NoncJ.11Tent portions of long-term interfund receivables are reported as nonspendable fund balance to the extent that 
proceeds from collection-of those receivables are not restricted, committed or assigned. Current portions of interfund 
receivables are considered "available spendable re1>ources" and are reported in the appropriate fund balance category. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, and all other 
tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations ,and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a. single 
reporting period. The accounting treatment of capital assets depends .on whether the assets are used in governmental 
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the district-wide or fund financial 
statements. • 

District-Wide Statements 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost 1f &ctual histqrical cost is not .available. 
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. 

Interest costs incurred during construction of general capital assets are not capitalized along with other capital asset 
costs. 

Depreciation ·of exhaustible fixed assets for machinery and equipment is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
statement of activities·. The depreciation on improvements and buildings is recorded as an allocated expense with 
net capital assets reflected in the statement of net position. 

Land, an inexhaustible capital asset, is not depreciated. 

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar value above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts), 
depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the district-wide statements and 
proprietary funds are as (ollows: · 

Buildings 
Improvements 
Machinery and Equipment 

Capitalization 
Threshold 

$ 25,000 
25,000 

5,000 
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Depreciation 
Method 

Straight-line 
Straight-line. 
Straight-line 

Estimated · 
Useful Life · 

50 yrs 
20yrs 

3-20 yrs 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Fund Financial Statements 
In the fund financial statements, capital assets- used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital 
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are 
accounted for on the accrual basis, the same as in the district~wide statements. 

Long-Term .Liabilities 
The accounting treatment of long-tenn liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund 
operations or proprietmy fund operations and whether they are reported in the_ district-wide or fund financial 
statements. 

All long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in the 
district-wide statements. The long-term liabilities consist of capital outlay certificates payable, early retirement · 
benefits payable and lease purchase obligations .. 

Long-term liabilities for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The debt 
proceeds are .reported as revenues and payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting 
for the proprietary fund is on the accrual basis, the same in the fund statement as it is in the district-wide statements. 

Program Revenues _ 
In the district-wide statement of activities, reported program revenues derive diryctly from the program itself or from 
parties other than the District's taxpayers or citizemy, as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three categories 
as follows: 

1. Charg~s for services - These arise from charges to customers, applicants or others who purchase, use or 
'directly benefit from th.e goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by the 
services. 

2. Program-specific operating grants and contributions - These arise from tnandatory and voluntary non
exchange transactions with other governments, organizations· or individuals that ate restri.cted for use in a 
particular program. · 

3. Program-specific capital grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary non-exch~ge 
transactions with other governments, organizations or individuals that are restricted for the acquisition of 
capital assets for use in a particular program. 

Proprietary Funds Revenue and Expense Classifications _ 
In the proprietary fund's statement of activities, revenues and expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how 
they are classified in the statement of cash flows. That is, transactions for which related C&Sh flows are reported as 
capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities or investing activities are not reported as 
components ofoperating revenues or expenses. 

Cash Flows 
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments and deposits 
(including restricted assets) with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. As of June 
30, 2020, the District had no certificates of deposit th.11t were included as cash equivalents or included in the practice of 
aggregating cash assets. 

Equity Classifications. 
District-Wide Financial Statements: 
'Equity is classified as net position and is displayed in three components: 

I. Net investment in capital assets .- consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other 
borrowings that are attn1mtable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
2. Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (a) external 

groups such as- creditors, grantors, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments; or (b) law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Unrestricted net position - all other net· position that does not meet the defmition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in' capital assets." _ . _ 

Fund Financial Statements: 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and is distinguished between nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned or unassigned components. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the district-wide 
fmancial statements. Fiduciary fund equity (except for agency funds, which have no fund equity) is reported as net 
positi~n held in trust for other purposes. 

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures 
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the District classifies governmental fund balances as follows: 

1. Nonspendable - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are re_quired to be maintained 
intact. 

2. Restricted - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders and· 
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions or by enabling legislation. 

3. Committed - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of 
decision-making authoricy,; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless 
the government ta1ces the same highest level of action to remove or change the constraint. · 

4. Assigned - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent ca~ be expressed by the 
governing board or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority. The District's 
assigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts. designated for next year's budget. 

5. Unassigned - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported only in the General 
Fund. . 

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the district-wide financial statements. Fiduciary fund equity (except 
for agency funds, which have no fund equity) is reported as net position held in trust for other purposes. 

The District uses restricted/committed amounts first when both r.estricted and unrestricted fund balance is available 
unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar 
spending. ' · 

The District does not have a formal tninimum fund balance policy. 

Application of Net Position 
It is the District's policy to first qse restricted net position, prior to the use of unrestricted net position, W?en an expense 
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources relate9 to pensions, and pension expense (revertue), information about the fiduciary ·net position of the 
South Dakota Retirement System ("SDRS") and additions to/deletions from SDRS's fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SDRS. District contributions and net pension liability 
(asset) are recognized on an accrual basis of accounting. 

-41-



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14.4 

NOTli:S TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Property Tax 
Property taxes attach as a,n enforceable lien on property as of January I of each year. Taxes ar~ levied on ·or before 
October I and payable in two installments on or before April 30 and October 31 of the following year. The county bills 
and collects the District's taxes and remits them to the District. District property tax revenues are recognized to the 
extent they are used to fmance each year's appropriations. Current year property taxes receivable,- which are not 
available as a resource that can be used to finance the current year's appropriations and therefore are not susceptible to 
accrual, have been deferred and are not reported as revenues.. · 

Th~ District is permitted by state statute to levy the following amounts of taxes per $1,000 oftaxabte valuation of the 
·property in the District: 

General Fund: 
Elementary and four-year accredited high school: 

Agricultural prQperty 
. Owner occupied property 
Nonagricultural property 

Capital Outlay Fund 
Special Education Fund 

Pennitted 

$ 1.473 
3.296 
6.821 
2.816 
1.616 

Actual 

$ 1.473 
3.296 
6.821 
2.816 
1.616 

Plus Abatement Total 
Assessment Actual 

$ .007 $ i.480 
.016 3..312 
.032 6.853 

2.816 
.005 1.621 

The following schedule reflects the taxable valuation for real estate for each county included in the District: 
Owner 

Occupied Nonagricultural Agricultural Total 
Codington $ 1,256,388,136 $ 735,748,384 $ 274,028,406 $ 2,266,164,926 
Deuel _187,666 86,926 4,508,159 4,782,751 
Grant 157,462 221,013 11,981,359 . 12,359,834 

·Hamlin 4,724,371 1,101,288 22,478,490 28,304,149 ____________ ___:__:__ ____ .;___c_ ____ ___:_____cc__ ____ '---'---

$1,261,457,635. $ 737,157,611 t 312,996,414 $ 2,311,611,660 

3. Changes in Capital Assets 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows: 

Balance Balance. 
July I, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 

Governmental activities: 
C~pital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 6,137,431 $ 449,389 $ - $ 6,586,820 
Construction in progress 625,056 5,271,800 5,896,856 
Capital investment in Northeast 

• Technical High School 811,780 {62,369} 749,411 
Totals 7,574,267 5,721,189 (62,369) 13,233,087 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

76,977,148 Buildings and improvements 1,005,157 77 ;982,305 . 
Equipment 23,520,240 1,939,383 (2,816,235) . 22,643,388 
La2to2 com2uters under ca2ital lease 12453,920 . 1,453 920 

Totals 1012951,308 2,944,540 {2,8 I 6,235} 1{)2,0792613 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and improvements 30,477,411 1,814,435 . 32,291,846 
Equipment 16,647,619 1,544,065 (2,735,114) 15,456,570 
Leased eguiement 484640 484,640 969 280 

Total accumulated depreciation 47,609,670 3,843,140 · (2,735,114) 48,717,696 
Total capital assets, being 

depreciated, net 54,341,638 (898,600) (81,121) 53,361,917 
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 61,915,905 $ 4,822,589 $ (143,490) $ 66,595,004 
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3. Changes in Capital Assets (Continued) · 
Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows: 

Instructional 
Support 
Total depreciation expense - govemmental activities 

$ 2, 148,230· 
1,694,910 

'$ 3,843,140 

Construction in progress at June 30, 2020, consists of the Healthcare Center of Learning and a remodel at the High 
School. See Note 15 for the commitments to these projects a,t June 30, 2020. · 

Balance 
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions 

Business-Type activities: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Equipment $ 590,456 $ 13,034 $ 
Total 590,456 JJ,034 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Equipment · 280,588 36,631 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net $ 309,868 $ (23,597) $_ · 

Depreciation expense for business-type activities was charged to functions as follows: 

Nutrition Services ,. 
Concessions 
LA TI Food Service 
LA TI Daycare Fund 
Total depreciation expense - business~type activities 

4. Long-Term Debt 
A summary of changes in long-term debt, excluding other postemployment benefits, is as follows: 

Debt payable, July 1, 2019 
ObligatioQ for 2020 retirees 
Retired 
Debt payable, June 30, 2020 

Capital 
Outlay 

Certificates 
$ 24,595,000 $ 

(925,000) 
$ 23,670,000 $ 

Unamortized 
Premium 
1,835,174 

(117,769) 
1,717,405 

Debt payabie at June 30, 2020, is comprised of the following: 

Capital Outlay Certificates: 

Early 
Retirement 

Plan 
Obligations 

$ 547,882 $ 
747,819 · 

(547,882) 
$ 747,819' $ 

Oipital Outlay Refunding Certificates, Series 20 I 6, maturity dates - August, 2017 to 
August, 2026, interest rate _.85-2.05%, payments made .from Capital Outlay Fund 

Capital Outlay Certificates, Series 2014, maturity dates - December, 2014 to 
December, 2026, interest rate 2.00-5.00%, payments made from Capital Outlay Fund 

Lease 
Purchase 

969,280 

(484,640) 
484,640 

Capital Outlay Refunding Certificates, Series 2017 ( crossover partial advance refunding), 
maturity dates - February) 2020 to August, 2033, interest rate 2.00-4.00%, payments 
made from Capital Outlay Fund · 
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Balance 
June 30, 2020 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

603,490 
603,490 

317,219 
286,271 

33,587 
390 

1,568 
1,086 

36,631 

Total 
$ 27,947,336 

747,819 
(2,075,291) 

$ 26,619,864 

$ 1,250,000 

13,555,000 

8,865;000 
$ 23,670,000 
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4. Long-Term Debt (Continued) . . 
In prior years, the District crossover refunded debt by placing the proceeds of the refunding issue into an irrevocable 
trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. The refunding issue will be 
called for redemption in June, ~022. As of June 30, 2020, the District has $10,055,502 on deposit with the escrow 
agent 

Early Retirement Plan Obligations: 
Payments outstanding for District's Early Retirement Plan, General Fund. 
Payments outs~ding for LA TI' s Early Retirement Plan, Post Secondary Fund 

Lease Purchase: 
Lease purchase obligation to financing company, due in annual payments of $484,640, 

through July, 2020, interest rate 0%, payments made from Capital Outlay Fund 

$ 592,312 
155,507 --:----

$ 747,819 · 

$ 484,640 

The gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases as of June 30, 2020, was $1,453,920. 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding, excluding other postemployment benefits and unarµortized 
premium, as of June 30, 2020, are as f~llows: · · 

> Early 
Ca]ital Outlay. Certificates Retirement Plan Lease Purchase Totals 
Principal · Interest Obligations Principal Principal Interest 

2021 $ 940,000 $ 91Q,808 $ 692,917 $ 484,640 $ 2,117,557 $ 910,808 
2022 965,000 888,590 54,902 1,019,902 888,590 
2023 1,020,000 861,153 .1,020,000 861,153 
2024 1,580,000 817,013 1;580,000 817,013 
2025 1,100,000 775,478 1,100,000 715,478 
2026-2030 8,935,000 2,993,.104 8,935,,000 2,993,104 
2031-2034 9,130,000 789,830 9,130,000 789,830 
Total $ 23,670,000 $ 8,035,975 $ 747,819 $. 484,640 $ 24,902,459, $ 8,035,975 

Total interest paid• on the above obligations for the year ended June 30, 2020, was $815,080. 

5. Other Post-employment Benefits 
Plan Description 

· Watertown School District has a single-employer defined benefit medical plan ("Plan") administered by Wellmark Inc. 
This plan provides medical insurance benefits to eligible current employees, as well as retirees meeting eligibility 
requirements. After eligibility for retiree benefits is established, retirees must pay premiums until they are eligible for 
Medicare. SDCL 6-1-16 specifically allows any school district to provide health insurance for retiring employees and 
their immediate families. The liability exists because of an implicit subsidy of costs. of the-benefit of retirees to the 
district. 

The contribution· requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be amended during the' 
negotiated agreement process between district certified staff and the governing board. · A full-time salaried employee 
who retires from the District, may. be eligible for retiree health insurance coverage if they were hired prior to August l, 
2008. Employees hired after August I, 2008, are not eligible for OPEB. · 

Employees who leave or have previously left the District are not eligible for the retirement benefits if they are re
employed after August I, 2008. Coverage also ceases when the retiree attains the age of 65. The retiree is responsible 
for I 00% of the full active premium rates for either single or family coverage. 

Funding Policy 
The District fun~ the other post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Because the District does not use a 
truSt fund to administer the financing of other post-employment benefits, no separate fmancial statements are required. 

-44-



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5. Other Post-employment Benefits (Continued) 
Employees covered by benefit terms 
As of June 30, 2020, there were a total of 315 employees covered by the benefit tenns. This includes 37 retirees 
currently receiving benefit payments and 278 active employees: 

Total OPE!] Liability 
The School District's total OPEB liability of$3,299,432 was measured as of June 30, 2020, and was detennined by an 
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Many of the assumptions used in the GASB Statement 7 5 actuarial valuation are the same assumptions used in the June 
30, 2019 South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS) actuarial valuation for Class A School Members. · 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 SDRS actuarial valuation are based on the results of an 
actuarial study for the period from July 1,201 I through June 30, 2016. · 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was detennined using the following a,ctuarial 
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Discount rate 
Healthcare cost trend rate 

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs 

2.25% 
3.00% 
3.87% 
7.00% for FY20, reduced by decrements of .25% to an ultimate rate of 
4% 
100% of projected health insurance for retirees 

The discount rate was based on the 20-Bond General Obligation Municipal Bond Index. 

Mortality rates for pre-retirement were· determined using the RP-2014 Employee Mortalit)( Table, projected 
generationally using Scale BB with rates adjusted 97%. Mortality rates for post-retirement were determined using 
the RP-2014 Combined Mortality T11,ble, projected generationany·using Scale BB with rates adjusted 97%. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability: 

Beginning of Year Balances · 
Service Cost 
Interest 
Benefit payments 

_ End of Year Balances 

Sensitivity ofliability to changes in the discount rate~ 

$ 

$ 

3,198,122 
111,696 
113,690 

(124,076) 
3,299,432 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point 
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate. 

Total OPEB Liability 

-45-

1% 
Decrease 

$ 3,496,773 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
$ 3,299,432 

1% 
Increase 

$3,110,347 
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5. Other Post-employment Benefits (Continued) 
Sensitivity of liability to changes in the healthcare trend rate: . 
The fol!owing pre.sents the total OPEB liability of the District calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 
percentage point lower or I percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1% 

Decrease 
Total OPEB Liability $ 3,012,748 

Current 
Healthcare 

Trend 
Rate 

$ 3,299,432 

1% 
Increase 

$3,623,116 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $167,261. At June 30, 2020, the District 
reported $17,819 of deferred inflows of resources and $263,558 of deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 
from changes in assumptions. 

Net amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30 Amount 
2021 $ 65,951 
2022 68,474 
2023 76,122 
2024 35-,192 
2025 

$ 245,739 

6. Leases 
· The District leases the facilities for a portion of Lake Area Technical Institute from the South Dakota Board of 

Education. The facilities were construct~ with a grant from the South Dakota Health and Education Facilities 
~uthority ("Authority") funded by proceeds from bonds issued. The South Dakota Board of Education leases the 
facility from the Authority and then sub-leases it to the District. The lease agreement calls for rental payments 
coinciding with the bond retirement schedule. Currently, those rentals are being paid from the facility fee fund account 
maintained by the trustee. It is anticipated that these fees will be sufficient to make the lease payments throughout the 
tenn of the lease. The facility fee is $35 per credit hour collected from each student attending the four vocational 
technical schools in the State. These fees are remitted to the trustee for the purpose of retiring the indebtedness against 
the facilities constructed at the various vocational technical schools. The lease term is for twenty-five years, &lthough 
there is a cancellation clause for non-appropriation funds. At the conclusion of the lease, the District and the South 
Dakota Board of Education have the option ofrenewing the lease on an annual basis for $100, subject to the resµ-iction 
on use of the project for post secondary vocational technical education. 

7. ·Interfund Revenues and Expenditures . 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the General Fund received ·revenues from other funds for administrative services. 
These amounts have been recognized as revenue in the General FlUld and expenditures in the other funds as follows: 

Fund 
Bookstore 
LATI Food Service 
Post Secondary 
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Amount 
. $ 5,900 

s,900 
193,490 

$ 205,290 
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7. Interfund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued) -
The Bookstore and LATI Food Service Funds paid rent' in the apiount of$7,950 and $7,160, respectively, to the Post 
Secondary Fund. The Post Secondary Fund- paid $25,980 to the Financial Aid Fund for fmancial aid matching 
requirement~. The Financial Aid Fund paid the Post Secondary Fund $12,527 for administrative expenses. The Post 
Secondary Fund made general purchases from the Bookstore and LA TI Food Service Funds in the amounts of 
~43,873 and $31,807, respectively. The Lake Area Technical Institute Foundation paid the Post Secondary Fund 
$141,765 for reimbursement of salaries and $2,000,000 as a donation for construction projects. The amounts were 
recognized as revenues and expenditures in the respective funds. 

8. Individual Fund Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances 
The June 30, 2020 interfund receivable and payable balances are for amounts due between funds for services provided, 
such as administrative fees, supply purchases, computer support services, bookstore and food services. lnterfund 
receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2020, were: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Capital Outlay 
Special Education 
Post Secondary 

Enterprise Funds: 
Bookstore 

Fiduciary Fund: 
Agency 

Interfund 
Receivables 

$ 66,376 

1,085 

28,246 

$ 95,707 

$ 

lnterfund 
Payables_ 

48,728 
7,166 

36,046 

3,767 
$ 95,707 

The Concessi(jns Fund transferred $19,000 to the Capital Outlay Fund for dance floor improvements. The Capital 
Outlay Fund and Special Education Fund transferred $48, 728 and $7,166, respectively, to the General Fund for interest 
earnings. The Capital Outlay Fund transferred $875,Q00 to the General Fund for insurance, utilities and fuel expenses 
as allowed under SDCL 13~ 16-6. The Pension Fund transferred $1, 116,5?0 to the General Fund to close the fund. 

9. Restricted Net Position 
The following table shows the net position restricted for other purposes as shown on the statement ofnetpositkm: 

Purpose 
Capital Ou~lay 
Special Education 
Post Secondary 
LA TI Foundation 
Perkins 
Arrow Education Foundation 
SDRS Pension 

10. Pension Plan 
Plan Information 

Restricted By Amount 
Law $ 13,919,512 
Law 216,918 
Law 7,633,903 
Law 5,835,513 
Law 570,459 

• Law 2,513,858 
Governmental Accounting Standards 5,044,099 

$ 35,734,262 

All employees, •working more than 20 h.ours per week during the school year, participate in the SDRS, a cost 
sharing, multiple employer defmed benefit pension plan adminis!ered by SDRS to provide retirement benefi~ for 
employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability and 
survivor b~nefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after ~ee years of credited ·service. Authority for 
establishing, administering and amending plan provisions are found in SDCL 3-12. The SDRS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary infonnation. That report 
may be obtained at http:/rwww.sdrs.sd.govrpul;?lications.aspx or by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SD 
57501-1098 orby calling(605) 773-3731. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10. Pension Plan (Continued) 
Benefits Provided . 
SI;>RS has three different classes of employees, Class A general members, Class B public safety and judicial 
members and Class C Cement Plant Retirement Fund members. · 

Members that were hired before July 1, 2017, are Foundation members. Class A Foundation members and Class B 
Foundation members. who retire after age 65 with three years of contributory service are entitled to an unreduced 
annual retirement benefit. An unreduced annual retirement benefit is ·also available after age 55 for Class A 
Foundation members where the sum of age and credited service is equal to or greater than 85· or after age 55 for 
Class B Foundation judicial members where the sum of age and credited service is equal to or greater than 80. Class 
B Foundation public safety members can retire with an unreduced annual retirement benefit after a~ 55 with three 
years of contributory service. An unreduced annual retirement benefit is also available after age 45 for Class B 
Foundation public safety members where the sum of age and cr~dited service is equal to or greater than 75. All 
Foundation retirements that do not meet the a"bove criteria may be payable at a reduced level. 

Members that were hired on/after July I, 2017, are Generational members. Class A Generational members and 
Class B Generational judicial members who retire after age 67 with three years of contributory service are entitled to 
an unreduced annual retirement benefit. Class B Generational public safety members can retire with an unreduced 
annual retirement benefit after age 57 with three years of contributory service. At retirement, married Generational 
members may elect a single-life benefit, a 60 percent joint and su:i;vivor benefit, or a I 00 percent joint and survivor 
benefit. All Generational retirement benefits that do not meet the above criteria may be payable at a reduced level. 
Generational members will also have a variable retirement account (VRA) established, in which they will receive up 
to 1.5 percent of compensation funued by part of the employer contribution. VRA,s will receive investment earnings 
based on investment returns. 

Legislation enacted in 2017 established the current COLA process. At each valuation date: 

• Baseline actuarial accrued liabilities will be calculated assuming the COLA is equal to long-tenn 
inflation assumption of.2.25%. 

• If the fair value of assets is greater or equal to the baseline actuarial accrued liabilities, the COLA 
will be: 

•The increase in the 3rd quarter CPI-W, no less than 0.5% and no greater than.3.5%. 
• If the fair value of assets is less than the baseline actuarial accrued liabilities, the COLA will be: 

•The increase in the 3rd quarter CPI-W, no less than O.So/o and no greater than a restricted 
maximum such that, if the restricted maximum is assumed for future·COLAs, the fair value or' 
assets will be greater or equal to accrued liabilities. 

All benefits except those depending on "the Member's Accumulated Contrioutions are annually increased by the 
Cost-of-Living Adjustment. 

Contributions 
Per SDCL 3-12, contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating employers are established 
and may be amended by the SDRS "Board. Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute the 
following percentages of their salary to the Plan; Class A Members, 6.0% of salary; Class B Judicial Members, 9.0% 
of salary; and Class B Public Safety Members, 8.0% of salary. State statute also requires the employer to contribute 
an amount equal to the employee's contribution. 

The District's .share of contributions to the SD~S for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, were 
$1,983,411, $1,934,456 and $1,909,134, respectively, equal to the required contributions each year. 
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10. Pension Plan (Continued) 
Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pens.ion Expense (Revenue), artd Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources'to Pensions 
At June 30, 2019, SDRS is 100.09% funded and accordmgly has a net pension asset. The proportionate share of the 
components of the net pension asset of the SDRS, for the District as of June 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Proportionate share of pension liability 
Less proportionate share of net pension restricted for pension benefits 
Proportionate share of net pension asset 

$188,961,459 
(189,122,143) 
$ (160,684) 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported an asset of $160,684 for its· proportionate share of the net pension asset. The 
net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 20 I 9 and the total pension asset used to calculate the net pension 
asset was based on a projection of the District's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
contributions of all participating entities. At June 30, 20 I 9, the District's proportion was l .51627660% which is a 
decrease of .0145882% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized a reduction of pension expense of $4,534,156. At June 30, 
2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 

Difference between e~pected and a~tual experience 
Changes in assumption 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
• Changes in proportion and difference between the District 

· contributions and proportionate share of contributions 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of Resources 
$ 630,300 

5,549,599 

68,327 
1,983,411 

$ . 8,231,637 

Deferred 
Inflows 

, of Resources 
$ 72,7..28 

2,275,066 

925,670 

74,758 

$ 3,348,222 

$1,9,83,411 reported as deferred outflow of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year endmg 
June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense (revenue) as fdllows: 

Year Ended June 3c...:O ___________________ _ Amount 
i021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Actu-arial Assumptions 

$ 

$ 

3,488,349 
(550,385} 
(353,506) 
3'15,546 

2,900,004' 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: . 

Inflation 
Salary Increases 

Discount Rate 
Future COLAs 

2.25% 
Graded by years of service, from 6.50% at entry to 3.00% after 25 
years of service -
6.50% net ofpe.nsion plan invesnnent expense 
1.88% 
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10. Pension Plan (Continued) 
Mortality rates were based on 97% of the RP-2014 Mortality Table, adjusted to 2006 and projected generationally 
with Scale MP-2016, white collar rates for females and total dataset rates for males. Mortality rates· for disabled 
members were based on the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, adjusted to 2006 and projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2016. The actuarial assumption used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on 
the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July I, 2011 to June 3 0, 2016. 

Investment portfolio management is the statutory responsibility of the South Dakota Investment Council ("SDIC''), 
which may utilize the services of external money managers for management of a portion of the portfolio. SDIC is 
governed by the Prudent Man 'Rule (i.e., the council should use the same degree of care as a prudent man). Current 
SDIC investment policies dictate limits on the percentage of assets invested in various types of vehicles (equities, 
fixed income securities, real estate, cash, private equity, etc.) .. The long-terin expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was determined using a method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected re~s, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of real rates 
ofretum for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018, (see the 
discussion of the pension plan's investment policy) are summarized in the following table using geometric means: 

Asset Class 
Global Equity 
Fixed Income 
Real Estate 
Cash 

Discount Rate . 

. Target 
Allocation 

58% 
30 
10 
2 

100% 

Long-Tenn 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

4.7% 
1.7 
4.3 
0.9 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset was 6.50%. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate 
and that matching employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the member rate. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine th~ total pension asset. 

Sensitivity of Liability, (kset) to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the District's proportionate share of net pension asset using the discount rate of 6.50% as 
well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.50%) or I percentage point higher (7.50%) than the current rate: 

School District's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

.1% 
Decrease 

$ 26,670,366 $ 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
1% 

Increase 

(160,684) $ (22,023,141) 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued SDRS .financial 
report. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

11. Early Retirement Plan 
The District has a retirement policy providing cash benefits to any full-time salaried employee with at least fifteen 
years of full-time salaried services with the District, and who are between and/or inclusive of the ages of fifty-five and 
sixty-two as of June 30 of the application year. Employees who leave or have previously left the District are not 
eligible for the retirement benefits if they are re-employed after August. I, 2008. The cash benefit is equal to 75% of 
the individual employee's last contract salary, exclusive of extra duty and cocurricular salary, if any, unless the position 
within a sport/activity has been held for fifteen consecutive years immediately preceding retirement. For the year 
ended June 30, 2020, there were fourteen employees participating in this plan. For individuals who qualify, the cash 
benefit is paid into an employer directed nonERISA 403 (b) plan in the. name of the retiree. 

The early retirement cash payments are funded by the District's Pension Fund and Post Secondary Fund. Benefits paid 
for the year ended June 30, 2020, were $445,654 and $102,228, which were paid from the Pension Fund and Post 
Secondary Fund, respectively. 

12. Joint Venture 
The District participates in the Northeast Technical High School, a cooperative service unit ("Co~op") formed for the 
purpose of providing vocational training services to the member districts. 

The members of the Co-op and their relative percentage participation in the Co-op are as follows: 

Castlewood School District No. 28-1 
Florence School District No. 14-1 
Great Plains Lutheran School 
Hamlin School District No. 28-3 . 
Henry School District No. 14-2 
Sumniit School District No. 54-6 
Watertown School District No. 14-4 
Waverly School District No. 14-5 

4.38% 
3.63% 
6.09%. 

1·1.48% 
3.10% 
2.83% 

64.49% 
4.00% 

100.00% 

The Co-op's governing board is composed of three members from the school board of tQ.e largest member school and 
one member from the school board from each remaining member school. The superintendent of the District and one 
other superintendent are appointed by the gbverning board to serve as advisors to the governing board iri a non-voting 
capacity. The governing board is responsible for adopting the Co-op's budget and setting service fees at a level 
adequate to fund the adopted budget. The District has an equity interest in the net position of the Co-op. This interest 
has been reported using the equity method of accounting. Separate financial statements for this joint venture are 
available from the Northeast Technical High School. At June 30, 2020, this joint venture had no long-term debt and 
total fund equity of$1,1621057. 

13. Risk Management . . 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the period ended June 30, 2020, the District managed 
its risks as follows: 

Employee Group Insurance 
The District has a group health self-insurance fund to pay for health and dental claims of District employees and their 
covered dependents. Premiums paid to the fund are actuarially determined and they cover the cost of processed claims, 
administrative costs, network' participation fees and the cost of individual stop-loss insurance at a coverage .level of 
$125,.000 per covered individual per year with an additional aggregating specific of $156,250. The District did not 
purchase aggregate sto~loss fasurance for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Total claims and administrative costs incurred during the year ended June 30, 2020, were $5,833,100 and $979,616, 
respectively. Those costs were funde.d by $4,304,151 of premiums which were charged to expenditures by the District, 
$725,821 ofreinsurance from stop-loss coverage and other rebates, and $1,592,111 of premiums which were funded by 
employee withholdings, Cobra premiums and by retired employees. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. Risk Management (Continued) 
At June 30, 2020, the District accrued an estimated liability for incurred but not reported claims of $709,221 based 
upon historical trends. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2020, were as 
follows: 

June 30, 2019 
Liability 

$ 709,221 

Current Year Claims 
and Changes in Estimates 

$ 5.833,099 

Claim 
Payments 

$ , 5,714,517 

June 30, 2020 
Liability 

$ 827,803 

At June 30, 2020, the District also had accounts receivable (')f $74,761 and a reserve for future claims of $6,225,450. 
These amounts are accounted for in the Internal Service Fund. 

Liab.ihty Insurance . 
The District purchases insurance coverage from a private carrier, Employers Mutual Company ('EMC") through a 
local agency, Fischer, Rounds & Associates, Inc. 

The objective of EMC is to administet and provide risk management services and risk sharing facilities to its clients, 
to defend and protect the clients against liability, to advise clients on loss control guidelines and procedures, provide 
clients with risk management servives, loss control and risk reduction information and to obtain lower costs for that 
coyerage. The District's responsibility is to promptly report to and cooperate with EMC to resolve any incident 
which could result in a claim being made by or ~gainst the District. 

The District pays an annual premium to provide liability coverage detailed below under <In. occurrence policy for all 
lines except for Professional Liability which is a claims-made policy and the premiums are accrued based on the 
ultimate cost .of the experience and the District's exposure or type of coverage. The District pays an annual 
premium to EMC to provide coverage for property, crime, equipment along with general, automobile, cyber ruid 
professional liability. 

The agreement. with EMC provides that the above coverages will be provided as follows: limit for building and 
contents - $251,690,127; auto physical damage does not have a specific limit instead it is Actual Cash Value per unit 
at the time of loss; equipment breakdown is a covered peril on the property so no specific limit; and crime $50Q,OOO. 
In addition to these coverages, an umbrella coverage in the amount of $10,000,000 is purchased that expands over 
all covered underlying liability policies. The District carries a $5,000 deductible for buildings and conte11:ts and 
crime, a $3,000 deductible for auto physical damage, and a $2,500 deductible for equipment. 

The District does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit other than the unibrella 
coverage noted above. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage -during the 
past three years. · 

Workers' Compensation 
The District participates, with several other educational units and related organizations in South Dakota, in the 
Associated School Boards of South Dakota Workers' Compensation Fund Pool ("Fund"), which provid¢ workers' 
compens,ation insurance coverage for participating members of the pool. 

The objective of the Fund is io formulate, develop and administer, on behalf of the member organizations, a program 
of workers' compensation coverage, to obtain lower costs for that coverage," and to develop a comprehensive loss 
control program. The District's responsibility is to initiate and maintain a safety program to give its employees safe 
and sanitary working conditions and to promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve any workers' 
compensation claims. The District pays an annual premium, to pro".ide workers'· compensation coverage for its 
employees, under a retrospectively rated policy and the premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost of the 
experience to date of the Fund members. The District may also be responsible for additional as'sessments in the · 
event the pool is determined by its board of trustees to have inadequate reserves to satisfy current obligations or 
judgments. Additional assessments, if any, are to be determined on a pro-rated basis based upon each participant's 
percentage of contribution in relation to the total contributions to the pool of all participants for the year in which the 
shortfall occurs. 
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13. Risk Management (Continued) . 
The pool provides loss coverage to all participants through pool retained risk retention and through insurance. 
coverage purchased by the pool in excess of the retained risk. The pool pays the first $600,000 of any claim per 
individual. Toe pool has reinsurance which covers up to $1,000,000 per individual per incident. · 

The District does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled claims resulting 
from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage over the past three years. 

Unemployment Benefits 
The District has elected to be self-insured and retain all risk for liabilities resulting from claims for unemployment 
benefits. The District has reserved equity in the Internal Service Fund in the amount of $183,541 for the payment of 
future unemployment benefits. During the year ended June 30, 2020, claims were filed for unemployment benefits 
resulting in claims expenses in the amount of$5,083. At June 30, 2020, the District had no claims payable. 

14. Violations of Finance-Related Legal an~ Contractual Pro~isions 
The District is prohibited by statute from spending in excess of appropriated amounts at the fund level. The 
following represents the significant overdrafts of the expenditures compared to appropriations. 

Self-Insurance Flllld $ 207,716 

The governing board plans to monitor these expenditures to prevent future overdrafts. 

15. Significant Commitments and Subsequent Events 
In March, 2019, the District approved $5,543,266 for the construction of the Prairie Lakes Healthcare Center_ of 
Learning at the Lake Area Technical Institute. The District had expended $4,905,516 through June 30, 2020. The 
project is being funded with a Prairie Lakes Healthcare System donation, a grant from the SD Health & Education 
Facilities Authority and cash on hand. The' project was completed December, 2020. 

ln May, 2020, the District approved $14,494,975 for the remodel of the high school. The District had expended 
$991,340 through June 30, 2020, The project is being funded with capital outlay certificates, which were issued in 
September, 2020. This project is expected to be completed August, 2023. 

Management has evalJiated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No 
additional .significant subsequent events have been identified that would require adjustment or disclosure in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 
,, 

BL'DGET ARY COMPARISON ·scHEDULE - BL'DGET ARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended Junr 30, 2020 

Variance 
Budgeted Af!!ount, Positive 

Ori~inal Final Actual (Negative} 

Revenues 
Local SOl;lfCCS 

Taxes 
Ad valorem taxes $ 9,284,600 $ 9,284,600 $ 9,484,638 $ 200,038 
Other taxes 430,000 430,000 413,204 (16,796) 

Interest earned 70,000 70,000 100,321 30,321 
Cocurncular actlVltles, 

Adm1ss1ons 100,000 100,000 81,875 (18,125) 
Other revenua from local sources 

Other 449,900 449,900 S58,138 {91,7622 
10,334,500 ,J 0,3 34,500 10,438,176 103,676 

Intermediate sources 
County sources 400,000 400,000 416,481 16,481 
Revenue m heu of taxes 20,000 20,000 '10,261 {9,739} 

420,000 420,000 426,742 6,742 

State Sources 
Grants-m-a1d 

Unrestncted. 13,115,975 13,115,975 12,399,012 (716,963) 
Other state revenue 994,965 1,015,175 962,348 ~52,8272 

14,110,940 14,131,150 13,361,360 (769,790) 

Federal sources 
. Restncted received from Federal 

Government through the State 918,280 1,274,480 1,479;789 205,309 
Other Federal revenue 85,080 85,080 83,053 (2,027) 

1,003,360 1,359,560 1,562,842 203,282 

Total Revenues 25,868,800 26,245,210 25,789,120 ~456,Q901 

Expcnditues 
Instruction 
Regular programs 

Elementary 8,731,58D 8,642,655 8,003,376 639,279 
Middle school 2,468,800 2,495,760 2,384,193 111,267 
High school 4,696,610 4,755,840 4,4H,504 344,336 

Special programs 
Gifted and talented 139,750 153,935 , !04,08~ 49,852 
Other 1,163,795 1,275,660 1,189,974 85,686 

17,200,535 17,323,850 16,093,430 1,230,420 



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14--4 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHED"CLE-BUDGETARY BASIS- GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 • 

Variance 
Bud;eted Amounts Positive 

Original Final Actual ~e;ative) 

Support services 
PupJ!s. 

Attendance and social "{ork 287,980 337,005 _ 335,127 1,878 
Health 198,935 208,9;35 190,939 17,9,96 
Guidance 800,585 754,220 724,155 30,065 

Instructional staff 
Improvement of mstruct1on 482,935 744,889 655,606 89,283 
Educational media 1,030,440 1,040,965 966,506 74,459 

General admm1strat1on 
Board of education 101,020 101,020 73,754 27;266 
Executive admm1strat1on 544,135 544,135 543,347 788 

School admm1strabon 
Office of the pnnc1pal. 1,786,900 1,794,855 !,723,769 71,086 

Business 
Fiscal services 541,230 541,230 529,824 11,406 
Operation and maintenance 

of plant 2,948,130 ~.963,270 2,528,279 434,991 · 
PupJI transportation 1,090,180 1,083,680. 851,014 2)2,666 

Central 
Staff 96,475 96,475 49,266 47,209 

9,908,945 10,210,679 9,171,586 1,039,093 

Community services 
Noneubhc school and other 65,270 66,486 38,278 28,208 

Cocumcular activities. 
Male acbv1t1.Cs 202,970 202,970 205,529 (2,559) 
Female act1v1t1es 182,385 182,385 179,606 2,779· 
Transportation actJV1t1es 127,450 127,450 115,899 11,551 
Combined act1V1t1es 429,080 430,580 370,247 60,333 
Athletic d1rector 192,700 192,700 181,470 11,230 

1,134,585 1,136,085 1,052,751 83,334 

Total Ex2cnditures 28,309,335 28,737,100 26,356,045 2,381,055 

Excess of Revenues Over 
~nder2 Exl!enditures ~2,440,535) ~2,491,890) (566,925) 1,924,965 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers m 2,485,345 2,485,345 2,047,454 (437,891) 
Transfers out (319,675) p74,800) 374,800 
Total Other Financing Sources (Vses) 2,165,670 2,110,545 2,047,454 (63,091) 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses (274,865) (~81,345) 1,480,529 1,861,874 

Fund balance, begmnmg 5,977,68_9 5,977,689 5,977,689 

F11nd Balance, Endi11; $ 5,702,824 $ 5,596,344 $ 7,458,218 $ 1,861,874 

-55-



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE· BUDGETARY BASIS. CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
, Budgeted Amounts Ppsjtive 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Local sources 
Taxes 

Ad va]orem faxes $ 6,361,000 $ 6,361,000 $ 6,360,467 $ (533) 
Other taxes 45,000 45,000 73,7S6 28,756 

Interest earned 376,450 376,450 500,165 123,715 
Other revenue from local sources· 

Other 80,000 80,000 66,800 {13,200} 
6 862,450 6 862450 7,001,188 138 738 

State sources. 
Other state revenue 41 530 41 -530 41,S34 4 

41,530 41,530 41,534 4 

Total Revenues 6903,980 6,903,980 7,042,722 138,742 

Expenditures 
Instrucuon 
Regular programs 

Elementary 846,000 876,000 846,997 29,003 
Middle school 42,000 42,000 40,407 1,593 
High school 1_87,000 187,000 168,100 18,900 

Special programs 
-Other 11;000 17,000 9040 7,960 

1,092,000 1,122,000 1,064 544 57,456 

Support services 
Business 

Admm1strative services 21,000' 21,000 15,874 5,i26 
1 Opetat10n and maintenance of pll;lfit 1,786,680 2,409,180 1,940,577 468,603 

Pueil transeortat1on 267,500 267,500 256,905 1.0,595 
2 075,180 2,697,680 2,213,356 484,324 

Cocurrtcular activities 
Combined a-ct1V1t1es 61 500 61,500 60,975 525 

. Debt semces 2 344 300 2,344,300 2 343,!fS0 450 

Total Exeenditures 5,572,980 6,225,480 5,682,725 542,755 

Excess of Revenues Over 
·(Under} Exeenditures 1,331,000 p78,S00 . 1,359,997 681;497 

Qther Financing Sources (l_;ses) 
Sale of property 100,000 195,000 196,745 1,745 
Transfers m 19,000 19,000 19,000 
Transfers out {1,350,000} {1,350,000} {923,728} 426,272 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {1,231,000} {I, I 36,000) {707,983} 428,017 

Excess of Revenu,es and Other Sources 
Over Expenditures and Other Uses • 100,000 {457,500) 652,014 . 1,109,514 

· Fund balance, beginmng 13,267,498 13,267,498 13,267,498 

Fund Balance, Ending $ 13,367,498 $ 12,809,998 $ 13,919,512 $ 1,109,514 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS - SPECIAL EDUCATION FL'ND 
Yellr Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
Budgeted Amounts Positive 

Original , Final Actual (N~ative~ 

Revenues 
Local sources 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem ta,ces $ 3,524,785 $ 3,524,785 $ 3,573,507 $ 48,722 
Other taxes 22,000 22,000 40,244 18,244 

Tuition and fees 16,000 16,000 
Interest earned 6,000 6,000 7,166 1,166 
Other 71 000 71 000 77572 6572 

3,623,785 3 623,785 3,714,489 90,704 

State sources 
Grants-m-a1d 

Restncted 2,145,470 2,145,470 2,094,460. (51,0102 
. 2,145,470 2,145,470 2,094'1460 {5110102 

Federal sources· 
Restncted received from Federal 

government throng!! the State 1,003,275 1,002,115 792,476 {209,6392 

Total Revenues 6,772,530 6z771,370 6,6011425 {169,9452 

Expenditures 
Instruction 
Special programs 

ProS!ams for s~c1al education 5,166,055 s,192,soo 4,625,254 · 567,546 

Support services 
Pupils. 

Health 176,760 176,760 173,190 3,570 
Psychological sei:vices 264,380 264,380 260,415 3,965 
Speech, pathology and audiology 799,955 799,380 702,055 97,325 
Occupational therapy 426;185 426,185 396,038 30,147 

Instructional staff 
Improvement oflnstruction 113,250 , 113,250 114,745 (1,495) 
Educational media 22,000 22,000. 7,895 14,105 

Busmess 
Pupil transportation 130,985 130,985 109,000 21,985 

Central· 
Staff 34,980 34,980 20,577 14,403 

Special Educat10n· 
Ailmmistrative costs 226 655 226,655 216,011 10644 

2,195,150 2,194,575 1,999,926 194,649 

Total Ex~nditures 7,361,205 7,387,37S 6,625,180 762,195 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures (588,675) (616,005) (23,755) 592,250 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfer in 319,675 374,800 (374,800) 

· Transfer out {6,0002 (6,0002 (7,166} {1;1662 
Total Other Financing Uses 313,675 368,800 {7,1662 p75,9662 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenditure, an(l Other U!!eS (275,000) (247,'.t05) (30,921) 216,284 

Fund balance, beginning 247,839 247,839 247,839 

Fund Balance, Ending $ (27,161) $ ,634 $ 216,918 $ 216,284 

-57-



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO .. 14-4 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- BUDGETARY BASIS- POST SECONDARY FVND 
Year Elided June 30, 2020 

Variance 
Bud;eted Amounts Positive 

Ori;jnal -Final Actual ~!l•tive2 

Revenues 
Local sources. 
Twnon and fees $ 11,689,851 $ 11,689,855 $ 11,625,724 $ (64,131) 
Interest earned 85,000 155,000 171.026 1(,,026 
Cocumcular actlVItles: 
~r pupil activity income 525,700 

Other revenue from local sources 
525,700 407,715 (1J7.985) 

Other 444 175 2 525,385 2'689,447 164,062 
12,744,730 14,895,940 14,893,912 {2\028} 

State sources 
Grants-in-aid 

Unrestricted 6,907,590 6,907,590 7,023,751 116,161 
· Other state revenue 2 828 430 2 858 430. 3,044,539 186,109 

9;736,020 9 766,020 10,068,290 302 270 

Federal sources 
Restricted received from Federal 

government throull!! the State 642,905 981,770 1,341,745 365,975 

Total Revenues 23,123 655 25 643,730 26309947 666 217 

Expenditures 
Instruc!ton. 
Adult contlDIJIJlg educatlon progr,uns 

Occupational programs 12,929,875 13,207,330 12,165,319 1,042,011 
Other 124,250 2870&0 245 893 41187 

13,054,125 13,494,410 12,411 212 1,083,198 

Support services 
Pupils 

Technology support 1,227,010 1,329,1!60 l,363,Q62 (33,202) 
Gu~dance 1,615,645 1,623,645 1,532,687 90,958 
L1brarytmedia 148,700 149,700 125,550 24,150 
'Other 1,581,920 1,644,885 1,504,077 \40,808 

lnstrucnonal staff 
lnstructlon cumculum development 474,350 474,350 449,37? 24,973 

General admuusttatton 
Board of education 50,830 50,8~0 36,922 13,908 
Community relations 322,770 329,770 300,970 28,800 
Executive adm1mstrat1on 68,300 68,300 68,290 100 

School adnumstration 
Office of the director 796,325 803,955 758,882 45,073 

Business 
J:1scal services 269,865 269,865 261,146 8,719 
Facu1t1es acqws111on and constructJon 5,310,000 6,051,400 5,727,160 324,240 
Operatton and mamtenance of plant 1,833,620 1,836,620 1,747,602 89,018 
Pupil transportation 103,000 103,000 31,793 71,207 

Oth~r SUJ!EOrl services 847,185 847,185 716,077 131,108 
14,649,520 15,583J65 14,623,595 959,770 

Nonprogranuned charges. 
Pension eal'.!!!ents 102,230 102,230 102,228 2 

· Total Ex~nditures 27,805,875 29,180,005 27,137,035 2,042,970 

Excess of Revenues Over 
{!!nder! Ex~nditnres (4,682.220) ·p,536.275) (827,088) 2,709,]~7 

Otlfer Financing Squrces (Uses) 
Sale of property 5,000 5,000 (5,000) 
Transferm 1,830 000 
Total Other Finaacia;. Sources 1,835,000 5,000 !5,000) 

Excess of Revenues a■d Other Sources 
Over (Under) Expe■ditures and Other Uses (2,847,220) {3,53 t,275) (827,088) 2,704,187 

Fund balance, beS!nmn& 8,460,991 8,460,991 8,460,991 

Fund Balance, Ending $ 5,613,771 $ 4,929,716 $ 7,633,903 $ 2,704,187 
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WATERTO\YN SC1IOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET ARY BASIS - FINANCIAL AID FUND 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
Bu~!leted Amounts Positive 

Ori&!nal Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Local sources 
Other revenue from local sources. 

Other $ 271,800 $ 271,800 $ 45,300 $ (226,5002 

State sources 
Grants-m-rud 

Other 69,500 69,500 85,488 15,988 

Federal sources 
Restncted received from Federal 

~overnn:tent through the State 11,900,000 11,900,000 11,624,851 (275,149~ 

Total Revenues 12,241,300 12,241,300 11,755,639 (48S',661). 

Expenditures 
Support services. 

Fmanc1al aid 12,241,300 • 12,241,300 11,755,639 485,661 

Total Expenditures 12,241,300 12,241,300 ll,755,639 485,661 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under} Ex2enditures 

Fund balance, begmrung 

Fund Balance, Ending $ $ s 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

1. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
The School District folfowed these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the schedules: . . 

a. Prior to the first regu~ar board meeting in May of each year, the school board causes to be prepared" a 
proposed budget for tQe next fiscal year according to the budgetary standards prescribed by the Auditor 
General. 

b. The proposed budget is considered by the school board at the first regular meeting held in the montb of 
May of each year. 

c. · The proposed budget is published for public review no later than July 15 each year. 

d. A public hearing is held to solicit taxpayer input prior to the approval of the budget. 

e., Before October 1 of each year, the school board must approve the budget for the ensuing fiscal year for 
each fund, except fiduciary funds. 

f. After adoption by the school board, the operating budge, is legally binding at the fund level and actual 
expenditures of each fund cannot exceed the amounts budgeted for that fund, except as indicated in letter h: 

g. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item may not exceed five 
percent of the total school district budget and may be transferred by resolution of the school board to any 
other budget category, except for capital outlay, that is deemed insufficient during the year. No amount of 

' expenditures may be charged directly to the contingency line item in the budget. 

h. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state statute allows 
adopti9n of supplemental budgets when monies are available to increase legal spending authority. 

i. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered by resolution of the school board. 

j. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General 
Fund and special revenue funds. 

k. Budgets for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund are adopted on a basis consistent with 
g~nerally accepted accounting principles. 

The fmaricial statements prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America present capital outlay expenditure information in a separate category of expenditures. Under-the 
budgetary basis of accounting, capital outlay expenditures are reported within the function to which they relate. For 
example, the purchase of a new school bus would be reported as a capital outlay expenditure on the governmental 
funds statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, however in the budgetary RSI schedule, the 
purchase of a school bus would be reported as an expenditure of the support services~businesslpupil transpbrtation 
function of government, along with all other current pupil transportation-related expenditures. · 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Service Cost 
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 
Benefit Payments 
Net Change in Total OPES Liability 

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning 
Total OPEB Liability, Ending 

District's Covered-employee Payroll 

, Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered-employee Payroll . 
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$ 111,696 
113,690 

(124,076) 
101,310 

3,198,122 
$ 3,299,432 

$ 13,608,038 

24.25% 



WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT N'O. 14-4 

-SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
For the Year Ended June 30 

2020 2019 2018' 2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,983,411 $ 1,934,456 $ 1,909,134 $ 1,866,698 $ · 1,673,671 $ 1,630,885 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution 1,983,411 1,934,456 1,909,134 1,866,698 1,673,671 1,630,885 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ $ $ 

District's covered-employee payroll $ 33,028,183 $ 32,173,075 $ 31,818,773 $ 31,084,082 $ 27,889,214 $ 27,170,807 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT.NO. 14-4 

SCHEDULE OE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE.SHARE 
OF NET PENSlON LIABILITY (ASSET) 

For the Year Ended June 30 

2020 2019 

D1stnct's proportion of the net pension hab1hty/asset 15162766% 1.5308648% 

District's proportionate share of net pension hab1f1ty (asset) ,s (160,684) $ (35,703) 

District's covered-employee payroll $ 32,173,075 $ 31,818,773 

D1str1ct's proportionate share of the net penston asset 

as II percentage of1ts covered-employee payroll 050% 011% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

pension asset 10009% 100 02¾ 

. *The amounts presentep for each fiscal year were determmed as of the measurement date of the collective 
net pension hab1lt1y (asset) which 1s June 30 of previous fiscal year Until a full 10-year frend 1s compl)ed, 

the D1str1ct will present mformat1on for those years for which mformatlon 1s available. 

NOTES TO REQt:IRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFO~TION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 - SCHEDULE OF THE 
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 
AND SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

Changes of brnefit terms: 
No significant changes 

Changes of asumptions: 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

1 5314879% 14676726% 14888082% 14482285% 

$ (138,984) $ 4,957,653 s (6,314,461) $ {10,433,894) 

$ 31,084,082 $ 27,889,214 $ 27,170,807 . $ 25,294,680 

045% 17-78% 23.24% 4125% 

10010% 9689% 10410% 107 30% 

Legislation enacted ID 2017 modified the· SDRS COLA For COLAS first applicable 1D·2018, the SDRS COLA will equal the percentage mcrease m the most recent third calendar quarter CPI-W over the 
pnor year, no less than O 5% and no greater than 3 5% However, 1fthe FVFR assummg the long-term COLA 1s equal to the baseline COLA assumption (currently 2..25%) 1s less than 100%, the maximum 
COLA payable will be hm1ted to the mcrease that 1fassµmed on a long-term basis, results in a FVFR equal to or exceedmg 100% That condition existed as of June 30, 2018 and exists aga1D this year as of 
June 30, 2019 Future COLA~ are assumed to equal the_ current restricted max1m11m COLA which was 2 03% as of June 30, 2018 and 1s I 88% as of June 30, 2019 

The changes ID actuarial assumptions decreased the Actuarial Accrued L1a:b1hty by 1 5% of the Actuarial Accrued Liability based on the 2 03% COLA, reflectmg the current and assumed future restricted 
maximum COLA of I 88%, 

Actuarial assumptions are reviewed m depth periodically, with the next experience analysis anticipated before the June 30, 2022 Actuarial Valuation a!\d any recommended changes ant1c1pated to be first 
implemented m the June 30, 2022 Actuarial, Valuation · 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OFFICIALS 
June 30, 2020 

School Board: 

Tammy Rieber 
Stuart Ste.hi 
Stephanii;: Lenards 
Scott Hardie 
Jean Moulton 

Superintendent: 

Dr. Jeff Danielsen 

Business Manager: 

Rick Hohn 

Assistant Business Manager: 

Heidi Clausen 

Chairperson · 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FL'"NDS 
June 30, 2020 

Total Nonmajor 
Pension Perkins Arrow Education Governmental 

Fund Fund Foundation Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ 143,848 s 78,571 $ 222,419 
Investments, at Fair Value 2,473,424 2,473,424 
Student Loans Receivable, Net of 

Allowance $117,615 426,611 426,611 

TOTAL ASSETS $ $ 570,459 s 2,551,995 $ 3,122,454 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities· 
Accounts Parable $ s $ 24,796 $ 24,796 

Total Liabilities 24,796 24,796 

Deferred lnflq:ws of Resources: 
Other Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,341 13,341 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,341 1"3,341 

Fund Balances· 
Restricted - Perkins 570,459 570,459 
Restricted - Arrow Education Foundation 2,513,858 2,513,858 

Total Fund Balances 570,459 2,513,858 3,084,317 

TOTAL LIABil,JTIES; DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES A.'!lffl FUND BAJ.,ANCES $ $ 570,459 $ 2,551,995 $ 3,122,454 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOLDISTRICTNO.14-4 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

For the ".ear Ended June 30, 2020 

Total Nonmajor 
Pension Perkins Arrow Education Governmental 

Fu,nd Fund Foundation Funds 

REVENUES 
Revenue From Local Sources: 

Taxes 
Prior Years' Ad Valorem Taxes s 259 $ $ $ 259 

' Penalties and µiterest on Taxes 93 93 
Pnvate Donations and Grants '107,637 107,637 
Eanungs on Investtnents and Deposits 18,365 20,698 354 39,417 
Realized and Unreahzed Gains on Investtnents 63,308 63,308 
Other Local Revenue 189 189 

Total Revenue From Local Sources 18 717 20,887 171 299 210 903 

Total Revenues 18,717 20 887 171299. 210 903 • 

EXPENDITURES 
Support Services 

Puptls: 
· Fmancial Aid 389,397 389,397 
General Admm1stration 

Beneficiary Costs 140,815 140,815 
FundraJSmg 48,970 48,970 
Management and General 20,302 20,302 

Total Sue:eort Services 389,397 210,087 599,484 

Earll Retrrement Pa~ents 44\654 445,654 

Total Exeend1tureir 445,654 389,397 210,087 1,045,138 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (426,937) (368,510) (38,788) (834,235) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers Out (I, 11615602 ~1!116,5602 

Total Other Fmancmg Sources (Uses} p,116,5602 {l,116,5602 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (1,543,497) (368,510) (38,788) (1,950,795) 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING I 543 497 938,969 2,552,646 5,035,112 

FUND BALANCE, ENDING s $ 570,459 $ 2,513,858 $ 3 084,317 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.14-4 

COMB~ING BAL~~KE SHEET - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June 30, 2020 

Self- Total 
Insurance Unemployment Internal Service 

Fund Fund Funds 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,978,492 $ 179,742 $ 7,158,234 
Accounts Receivable 74,761 74,761 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 7,053,253 $ 179,742 $ 7,232,995 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Incurred But Not Reported Claims $ 827,803 $ $ 827,803 

NET POSITION 
Unrestricted 6,225,450 179,742 6,405,192 

Total Net Position 6,225,450 179,742 6,405,192 

TOT AL LIABlLITIES AND NET POSITION $ 7,053,253 $ 179,742 $ 7,232,995 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Yea~ Ended June 30, 2020 

Self- Total 
Insurance Unemployment Internal Service 

Fund Fund Funds 

OPERA TING REVENL"E 
Self-Insurance Premmms $ 6,622,083 $ S· 6,622,083 

' Total OEeratins: Revenue 6,622,083 6,622,083 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Unemployment Clanns 5,083 ·5,083 
Self-Insurance Costs 6,812,716 6,812,716 

Total Operatms: E~enses 6,812,716 5,083 . 6,817,799 

OPERA TING INCOME (LOSS} (190,633) (5,083} {195,716) 

NONOPERATINGR'EVENUE 
Local Services 

Interest Earned 97,447 1,284 98,731 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 97,447 1,284 98,731 

CHA."'lGE IN NET POSITION (93,186) {3,799) (96,985) 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 6!318,636 \83,541 6,502,177 · 

NET POSITION, ENDING $ 6,225,450 s 179,742 $ 6,405,192 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. U-4 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH I!LOWS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Self- Total 
Insurance Unemployment Internal Service 

Fund Fund Funds 

CASH FWWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts From Interfund Services Provided $ 6,585,377 $ s 6,585,377 
Claims and Admmtstratlve ExEenses Paid (6,694,134) (5,896) {6,700,030} 

Net Cash From O[!erati_ng Activities, {108,7522 (5,896~ (114,653) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest Eamm~s 97,447 1,284 98,731 

Net Cash From Investiu; Activities 97,447 1,284 98,731 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,310) (4,612). (15,922) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 6,989,802 184,354 7,174,156 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $ 6,978,492 $ 179,742 s 7,158,234 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operatmg Income (Loss) $ (190,633) $ (5.~83) $ (195,716) 
Change ln Assets and L1abiht1es 

Accounts Receivable (36,706) (36,706) 
Incurred But Not ReEorted Claims 118,582 {8132 117,769 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES $ (108,7S72 $ {5,896} $ ~114,6532 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

SCHEDBLE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Federal Pass-Through 
O'DA Entity Identifying 

Number Number Expenditures 
l:.S. Department of Agriculture: 
Pass-Through the S.D Department ofEducat1on 
S D Department of Education. 

Child Nutnt1on Cluster 
Cash Assistance 

School Breakfast Program (Note 3) 10553 16163SD310Nl09943 $ 149,889 
National School Lunch Pro~ ~ote 3} 10 555 16163SO310Nl09943 S63,157 

Cash Assistance Subtotal 713,046 
Non-Cash Assistance (Commod1t1es): 

National School Lunch Pro~ ~ote 32 10 555 16163SD310Nl09943 · 118,598 
Total f9r Child Nutnt1on Cluster s 831,644 
Child and Adult Care Food Program (Note 3) 10.558 16163SD310NI09943 17,217 

Direct Federal Fundmg: 
Soil and Water Conservation 10902 15,967 

Total U.S. De(!artment of Agriculture 864,828 

U.S. Department of Commerce (DOC): 
Manufacturin~ Extension Partnersh1e -11611 25,000 
Total U.S. De(!artmcnt of Commerce (DOC) 2,,000 

tJ.S. Departtnelit of Justice: 
Title V - Dehnguen~ Prevention Pro~ 16548 83,053 
Total U.S. De(!artment of Justice 83,053 

General Services Administration: 
Pass-Through the S D Federal Property Agency 

Donation of Federal Su!:,Elus Personal Pro~ ~ote 7} 39003 87,588 
Total General Services Administration 87 588 

U.S. Department of Education:. 
Direct Federal Funchng 

Student F11:ranc1al Assistance Programs Cluster 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 

.(FSEOG)(Note 4) 84007 65,000 
Federal Work Study Program (FWS) (Note4) 84 033 S4,045 
Federal Perkms Loan Program (FPL) - Federal Capital' 

Contributions (Notes 4 and 6) 84038 558,752 
Federal Pell Grant Program (PELL) (Note 4) 84063 3,385,973 
Federal Direct Student Loans {Direct Loan) (Notes 4 and 5) 84.268 7,497,137 

Total for Student Financial Assistance Programs Cluster 11,560,907 

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Rel1efFund (Note 4) 84425D S425D200050 291,327 
Education Stab1hzat1on Fund - Student Aid (Note 4) 84425E P425E200555 597,229 
Education Stab1hzat1on Fund - Inst1tut10n (Note 4) 84425F P425F200636 781,245 

Indirect Federal Funding: 
S D Department of Education 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84 010 S010Al50041 59Q,470 
Career and Techmcal Education - Basic Grants to States 84 048 V048AI 50041 629,211 
Supportmg Effective Instruction, State Grants 84 367 S367AI 50039 237,276 
Special F..ducatlon - State Personnel Development Grant (SPDG) 84 323 20180-635 191,121 
School Improvement Grants 84377 S010Al80041 102,930 
School Support and Academic Ennchment Program 84424 S424A 180043 50,569 
Special Education 'cluster 

Special Education - Grants to States (Notes 3 and 4) ·84027 H027Al50091 781,329 
seec1al Education - Preschool Grants ~oles 3 and 4) 84.173 Hl73Al50091 14,425 

Total for Seec1al Education Cluster 795,754 
Total U.S. De(!artment of Education 15,837,039 

Grand Total $ 16 897 508 
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WATERTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 14-4 

SCHEDULE OF .EXPENDITURES OF F£DERAL A WARD~ (CONTINUED) 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 · 

Note I: The accompanying schedule of expenditures of .federal awards ("Scheoule") includes the federal award 
activity of the School District ("District") under programs of the federal government for the year ended 
June 30, 2020. The information in this schedule is in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 

Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Because the schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, 
changes in net position or cash flows of the District. 

Note 2: Eitpenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited a& to reimbursement. Negative amounts 
shown on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal_ course of business to amounts 
reported as expenditures in prior years. The District has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect 
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3: Federal reimbursements are not based upon specific expenditures. Therefore, the amounts reported here 
represent cash received rather than Federal expenditures. 

Note 4: This represents a major Federal financial assistance program. 

Note S: Loans guarante~ under Federal guarantee loan progr~s and issued to parents of eligible students or 
eligible students attending this vocational technical school had the following values: 

Federal Direct Student Loans, unsubsidized 
Federal Direct Student Loans, subsidized 
Federal Direct PLUS Loans 

A pdvate nonprofit corporation acts as the guarantee agency in the State_ of South Dakota. 

$ 3,713,953 
3,308,538 

474,646 

Note 6: Federally funded loan programs had the following current fiscal year-disbursement and outstanding Joan· 
balances at year-end: 

Federal 
CFDA Administrative Loan Loan Balances 

Number Expenses Disbursement June 30, 2020 

Perkins Loans 84.038 $ 14;526 $ 0 $ 544,226 

Note 7: .The amount reported represents 23.3% of the briginal acquisition cost of the Federal Surplus Pi-operty 
received by the District. Original acquisition cost is provided by Federal Surplus Property. It is not what 
the school actually p~id for the item. 
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